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“Catch22 colleagues ha
delivered huge impact:

supporting thousands o
to lead better lives.”

The breadth and depth of the
services and programmes we
deliver at Catch?22 never fails to
impress me. This year, Catch2?2
colleagues have delivered huge
impact: supporting thousands
of people to lead better lives,
build resilience and fulfil their
ambitions.

We've supported thousands of
people furthest from the job
market into jobs — with over
60% of those we place into work
sustaining that employment
beyond six months. We have
designed programmes for
specific cohorts (such as care
experienced young people), and
for specific industries (such

as energy transition, digital
and tech, and the cultural and
creative sector).

We've helped young victims of
exploitation, including County
Lines, get their lives back on
track, and recovered



millions of pounds for victims
of fraud. And, we've supported
young people struggling with
substance misuse and with
their mental health.

Our rehabilitation work with
those who have left prison is
going from strength to strength,
and we are continually driving
innovation through pilots and
pushing for policy change
where we feel it’'s needed.

Our Include Schools all meet
the Independent Schools
Standards and all of our
alternative provision colleges
are flourishing - providing
vital support for children and
young people who struggle in
mainstream settings.

Our Social Tech Amplifier
programme, which provided a
springboard for tech ventures
with a focus on supporting
employment outcomes for
people with barriers, has

now evolved and broadened
into Good Tech Ventures.

This growing community of
entrepreneurs is key to pushing
the boundaries of what’s
possible and what will make
public services the best they
can be for those who need
them.

I am incredibly proud of all
we've achieved this year and of
the partnerships we've formed
with like-minded organisations,
partners,and commissioners
who see the value in what we
do. Most of all | want to say

a heartfelt thank you to all
Catch22 staff for their ongoing
committment and hard work.

| hope you enjoy reading this
review as much as | did.

Terry Duddy
Chair, Catch22



“Organisations like ours need to
continue to evidence the public
benefit we create and the social
value we deliver in the services
we provide.”

The need to be accountable,
demonstrate impact, and
evidence value for money in
organisations like ours has
never been more important
than it is today. As Chief
Executive of Catch22, this is
something | am determined
to do and do well over the
next few years.

In light of our struggling
economy, cost of living crisis,
and increased demand for
our services, organisations
like ours need to continue

to evidence the public
benefit we create and the
social value we deliver in the
services we provide.

Doing this well is not about
receiving kudos for the work
we do, or because we have
to as a part of our funding
arrangements. It’s because
we should, and it’s the right
thing to do. It’s to satisfy
ourselves



as social sector professionals
that our day-to-day activity is
having an impact: the kind of
Impact that brought us to work
in the sector in the first place.

Social value is woven into the
fabric and history of the sector
and what we do and, with the
explosion of technological and
data-driven solutions, we have
the opportunity in ways we
have never seen before to fully
utilise these tools to enable us
to capture impact in simpler
and more systematic ways.

We also have the opportunity
to gain insights to meet needs
from information and data that
we previously would not have
been able to.

For us, this is a continuous
journey that we are committed
to and will continue to learn
from. Alongside deepening
our practice, evidencing our
sustainability, and supporting

our workforce, we remain
committed to the social impact
we create.

| am very proud of the progress
we have made in 2023 and
continue to be inspired by the
great work of my colleagues
and the wider partnership
network that contributes to
the work we do in many ways.
Without them, we would not be
able to achieve the impact we
do.

| hope you enjoy reading our
review and are as inspired by
the great work as | am.

Naomi Hulston
Chief Executive, Catch22






New National County
Lines support contract
set to support hundreds
of young victims

This month we announced our new Home office contract
to support hundreds of victims of exploitation from

drug gangs through an expanded County Lines support
service. The service operates in four priority locations

of the country, where young people are often targeted

- London, West Midlands, Merseyside and Greater
Manchester.

Catch?2?2 is delivering a one-to-one specialist support
service for young people under 25 - safely making
contact with young people who have been referred by
partners, such as police and children’s services, and work
with them to exit their involvement in County Lines.

“For children and young people who are
victims of County Lines activity, the impact
on their lives — and the lives of those
around them - is devastating. We know that
grooming techniques are becoming more
advanced and that escaping the clutches
of these perpetrators can be incredibly
difficult. That’s why as part of this service
we’ll not only be bringing young people
home safely, we’ll support them to make
sure they can process their experiences
and are protected from any future harm.”

Naomi Hulston, CEO, Catch22



Our Patron, Princess
Anne, awards Digital Edge
participants

Participants on our Digital Edge programme — funded by
Microsoft — which supports young people facing barriers
to work into digital and tech careers, were presented with
awards by HRH Princess Anne. The event was a celebration
of the programme and the achievements of the young
people who've participated over the last year.




Reform of youth
employment — 1 year on

In September 2021, Catch?22 embarked in earnest

on its mission to tackle youth unemployment and
underemployment — by making it our Reform priority. In
the last year, Catch22 employability programmes placed
nearly 750 young people into work and many of those are
still in work 6 months on.

We've expanded many of our programmes, held several
Employability Summits on diverse and inclusive
workforces and held a roundtable series focussing on
the topic of underemployment. Catch?2?2 is also a member
of the Youth Employment Group, which now comprises
more than 200 organisations working in and around the
youth employment space. We rounded off our activity

by hosting fringe events at the Conservative and Labour
party conferences in the autumn.

New pay and grading
service to support our staff

As part of our commitment to our People, we launched
our new pay and grading structure this month.

The new structure was introduced in line with our People
Strategy ambitions to develop a Catch2?2 total reward
offer that demonstrates that we value our people and
that we can use as a lever to retain outstanding talent
working across our Catch22 community. The revised pay
structure enabled us to provide on an average a 6.5%
increase for the majority of our employees and we put
aside a £1.4 million investment to achieve this.
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Legal, debt and welfare
benefits advice

Community Links’annual review revealed that we'd

helped 1,300 clients with legal, debt, and welfare
benefits advice (70% of them were Newham
residents) in the previous year. Our youngest client
was 18 and the oldest 86.




Restorative Justice takes
centre stage

Nottingham Victim staff presented at Restorative Justice
event at the Nottingham Justice Museum, speaking
alongside the CEO of Nottingham Office of the Police

and Crime Commissioner and two victims who they had
supported through the Restorative Justice process.

Restorative Justice is a central part of our victims’ services,
and this year we also hosted a podcast and webinar to
discuss its application and value.

Catch?2?2 is also setting up a Restorative Practice Forum for
staff, to share best practice and understand how it can be
applied across different areas of our work.
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Catch22 Business
Strategy

Our new three year business strategy sets out how
we will deliver on our mission and vision — framed
around our new three strategic operational hubs.
The strategy includes a series of guardrails for

the organisation, which set the tone for all our
organisational leaders to follow for the coming
years - providing a sense of freedom to create
opportunities for our service users within clear
parameters

GUARDRAIL1

An organisation that delivers demonstrable value and impact

for its customers and users

Demonstrated through:
Robust metrics reflecting total reach and positive
outcomes (breadth and depth).

. Specialist insights, using national and local benchmarks
to evidence impact.

Powerful stories from participants, set in context, that
demonstrate the value of our work.

GUARDRAIL 2
An organisation that is financially stable and sustainable; one

true to its social value DNA

Demonstrated through:
Remaining cash positive throughout the business plan
period.
Staying firmly within our reserves policy, which is

adjusted in line with economic conditions.
. Generating a re-investable surplus, focused on strategic
enablers.

GUARDRAIL3

An organisation that is a great, safe, place to work - as defined
by our employee experience

Demonstrated through:
Consistently being ranked and recognised as a leading
social business to work for
A champion of diversity and social impact
An organisation that is recognised for developing and
growing its people as reflected in our employee net
promoter score.
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Catch22’s Tara Ward wins
prestigious award for
campaigning work for
victims

Beacon’s Team Leader Tara Ward won the

prestigious Saskia Jones Award at the Criminal
Justice Alliance awards.

As well as her great work within the Beacon

service and being an advocate for Catch22’s work
externally, Tara successfully campaigned for a
change to the Code of Practice for Victims of Crime.
Thanks to her work, now in the case of homicide,
wider relations to victims will receive support
rather than just immediate family.
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Social Switch Project Highly
Commended at national
awards

The Social Switch Project was Highly Commended at the
Children and Young People Now Awards in the Workforce
Development category. Funded by the Mayor of London’s
Violence Reduction and United, and delivered in partnership
with RedThread, the programme trains professionals
working with young people to spot the signs of online harms.
It also works with young people interested in careers in
social media to help them fulfil their potential.

This month also saw the 1500th participant complete the
programme!
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Catch22 Minutes
Podcast

We're now into our third series of the
Catch??Minutes podcast — with our justice series
completed this year and our young people and
families episodes launching in autumn 2022. The
latest series covers topics including children

who go missing from home, the criminalisation of
children in care and County Lines.

MINUTES
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Salesforce partnership
extended to help more
people into tech roles.

We extended our partnership with Salesforce to
support more young people into digital and tech
sectors. The successful Digital Leap programme
will now operate in Manchester as well and London.

“It’s nice to know that there is someone
there to listen and understand you

and to give me help when needed. |
appreciate the whole programme. The
support went very hand in hand to help
prepare me for my apprenticeship
interview. | officially started my Data
apprenticeship in November”

Jamal, Digital Leap participant

salesforce
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#16DaysofAction against
Gender-Based Violence

Backed by the United Nations and organisations
around the world, 16 days of Action against Gender-
Based Violence is an annual international campaign
which calls for the end of violence against women and
girls (VAWG). To mark the campaign, we published a
series of blogs highlighting the different forms VAWG
can take, approaches to tackling it and supporting

its victims, and exploring how we can keep up the
movement’s momentum.



Green jobs for all

We completed our Green Jobs For All Forum
webinar series, where we explored with employers,
job seekers, researchers and policy makers, the
market for entry level green jobs and how people
can access them. Across the series, we heard

from speakers from the Department for Work and
Pensions, the Department for Environment, Food
and Rural Affairs, PWC, City & Guilds, SUEZ.

Our partners at the Green Alliance will be pulling
together the key findings and recommendations

in a short report next year, as we hope to build
programmes to support those furthest from the job
market into green jobs.

M?

Green
JG5BS

For All Forum
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Social Tech Amplifier
onboards 11 ventures

Partnering with Ufi VocTech Trust and Social Tech
Trust, we began delivering the Social Tech Amplifier,
which, over the year, has supported 11 ventures
who are focused on developing and implementing
tech solutions to help tackle youth unemployment.

The Amplifier helps ventures unlock opportunities
in the public sector supply chain and prepare them
for scale through venture activity development
activities and access to investment. They also
receive support from Hatch and Microsoft whose
products and expertise give them access to
relevant software, guidance and mentorships.

“We’re thrilled to be part of the
Social Tech Amplifier. The Amplifier

is the perfect platform to learn from
experts such as Microsoft but also
gain valuable advice and guidance
from Catch22 whilst we develop, test,
network and launch our technology
into the employment sector.”

Marina Hoole, Chief Operating Officer at Imployable
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Catch22 mentoring
network programme
kicks off

The hugely successful mentoring network saw 12 mentors
and 12 mentees from across Catch22 combine to enhance
their networks, build confidence and learn from each other’s
experiences.

The programme includes:

bi-monthly workshops for mentees covering a range of
topics and guest speakers,

monthly calls between a mentee and mentor to discuss
development and challenges faced at work,

an internal placement within a chosen team,

a mini project on a topic which is both of interest to the
mentee and benefical to Catch?22,

regular mentee catch-up calls to provide peer support
and work on a project, and

atwo-day residential.
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Apprenticeship
provision strengthened
through joining Learn
Plus Us

Catch22’s award-winning apprenticeship
provision joined Learn Plus Us this month — an
apprenticeship business which is part of the
Angus Knight group. Catch22 and Angus Knight
already enjoy a strong relationship as part of
their joint venture, Jobs 22. This acquisition
further strengthens the link between the two
organisations.

Last year, our provision was rated a “Good” Grade 2
provider by Ofsted and was recognised in the Rate
My Apprenticeship survey as a “Top 20” training
provider nationally.
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Treehouse celebrates its
first birthday

The Lighthouse Pedagogy Trust’s first home,
Treehouse, which is based in Sutton, celebrated its
first birthday. The home offers a safe, nurturing, and
empowering community in which young people can
develop, learn, and thrive. We want young people

to be safe, to feel loved and happy with a strong
network of relationships, to discover and realise
their skills and talents, and have high aspirations
for their futures.
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Child exploitation
resource engages
hundreds of schools

There have been more than 1,200 downloads of
Catch On - an education resource about child
exploitation aimed at years 7 and 8 (ages 11-14).
The resource contains a suite of options for a single
lesson or a series of lessons exploring the topic of
grooming and exploitation. There is also a separate
handbook for parents and professionals.

“It was very engaging and really
enabled discussion. To be honest,

we were a bit shocked at how much
some of the kids knew about all this,
although some were much less aware.
It was definitely stories they could
relate to and that encouraged them to
reflect on their own experiences.”

Teacher
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Recognising our people

Catch22 continued to celebrate and recognise its people
with a 4% cost of living increase and continued alignment
with the real living wage this year. Our ongoing commitment
to our pay and benefits offer has enabled our average salary
to be aligned with ONS benchmarks.

Becoming a sustainable
business

Catch22’s commitment to sustainability was bolstered
this year with a new Sustainability Coordinator and
Sustainability Champions working group.

We launched a pilot of Waste & Recycling services at two
of our main offices, and have improved signage and bin
areas as well as educating staff to waste less and recycle
more. As part of this, we have access to live data about our
performance, which we will use for environmental reports
and behaviour change campaigns.

Colleagues can also make use of our Cycle to Work and low
emissions Car Salary Sacrifice schemes.
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Data transformation
programme set to
revolutionise use of
data and analytics
across Catch22

Our data transformation  The team is onboarding
programme will globally recognised

revolutionise the use
of data and analytics
across Catch22. Within
the next two years we
will have reimagined,
redesigned, and rebuilt
our data infrastructure
allowing our teams

to have access to

the latest insights

and intelligence to
continuously improve
our frontline service
delivery.

specialist talent to help
build a robust, future-

proofed data ecosystem,

enabling Catch22 to be
a truly innovative social
enterprise. Already
this year, we've seen
powerful dashboards

created for our hubs and

corporate services.
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Catch22Minutes
podcast

This year, we rounded up Series Three of our podcast
(focusing on our young people, families and communities
work) and launched our policy series. We've covered topics
including county lines, inequity in safeguarding, short-term
prison sentences, Al, and much more!

The podcast is proving a popular listen for those in the
sector and we've welcomed some fantastic guests from
organisations including the British Transport Police, the
New Economics Foundation, Crest Advisory and Listen Up.

MINUTES
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Revamped Catch22
website launches

Our website is our window to the world and, this
year, we launched a new website that we believe
represents what Catch22 is all about; delivering
high-quality services and meaningful impact, and
driving systemic change.

The new site includes:

» better search functionality including a service
locator to allow you to not only see what
services Catch?2?2 delivers, but how far away
those services are,

e anevents hub, enabling you to sign up for any
upcoming Catch22 events — both virtual and in-
person — with ease, and

« anew accessibility toolbar, with functionality
including translation, colour and size changes,
audio readings and much more.

® docassitility Tosts Sipmmoorwets  Kespintmcn  Sveeds  Sean O

catch
What wa o - Wark withus Aveutus Resources Contact

For over 200 years, Gatch22 has designed
and delivered services that build resilience
and aspiration in people and communities.
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Norfolk Include school
celebrates ‘Good’ Ofsted
rating

The Ofsted visit to Include Norfolk in May resulted
in the school receiving a “Good” rating.

The Ofsted inspection report recognised the
remarkable progress made by Include Norfolk

in recent years, acknowledging the school's
unwavering pursuit of excellence and its positive
impact on the educational journey of its students.
The “Good” rating affirms the collective dedication
of the school’s talented staff, diligent students,
supportive parents, and committed provider
Catch?22.

“Pupils are supported well to value
their potential and meet the high
expectations of them. Pupils are
determined to be successful in adult
life and are well-prepared for their
next steps in education or training.”

Ofsted report, May 2023




InspirEd 2023 and staff
awards

Colleagues from across the country came together to attend
in-person workshops across the country, learning about the
rich variety of services and programmes delivered across
the organisation. We also held sessions online, covering a
range of topics including data and insights, management,
wellbeing, and health and safety.

The week formed part of the national Learning at Work
Week campaign, and we were “Commended” as part of the
Learning at Work Week awards.

« Over b0 different members of staff presented and
facilitated workshops.

« 370 colleagues attended an in-person event.

«  Therewere 1,253 online session attendances.

The staff awards were a fantastic celebration of the
achievements of colleagues across the organisation, with
the worthy winners recognised in a ceremony held at
Clifford Chance, Canary Wharf.
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“I thought this year’s smorgasbord-style events worked really
well. | absolutely loved seeing the richness and variety of
knowledge and experience, and just the sheer talent we have
within the organisation. Most importantly, though, | value the
warm, supportive, inclusive and ‘can-do’ culture it showcases.”

Catch22 colleague

Colleagues receive the royal
treatment at the King'’s
Garden Party

To mark the King’s Coronation,
Catch?22, as a charity with a royal
patron, received two tickets to the
garden party. Paul Kiggell and Emma
Norman attended, alongside a wide
range of charity representatives.
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Justice sector convenes
at Catch22 conference

We brought together voluntary sector
organisations, Ministry of Justice representatives,
probation service colleagues, and practitioners
from across Catch22 in our inaugural ‘The role

of the third sector in the criminal justice system’
conference.

The conference provided a platform to celebrate
the sector’s many successes and address its
challenges, fostering dialogue, collaboration, and
knowledge sharing. Keynote addresses from Anne
Fox (CEQ of Clinks) and Nina Champion (CEO of the
Criminal Justice Alliance), were accompanied by
lively panel discussions and insights from expert
practitioners and those with lived experience.




With the Government
announcement that
traineeships would no
longer be a stand-alone
programme, we brought
together key players from
the employability sector
to discuss and debate
what makes successful
pre-employment support
for young people.
Featuring speakers from
the Learning and Work
Institute, West Midlands
Combined Authority, and the
Department for Education,
key asks included:

The future of pre-
employment support for
young people

aYouth Guarantee to
ensure all young people
are able to access a job,
apprenticeship, or other
education or training
programme,

streamlined access to
training, and

adequate financial
support for young people
embarking on pre-
employment training.









Care experienced young
people take to the stage

Members of our Young People’s Benchmarking
Forum hosted the “In Their Own Words” event,
where they highlighted how key issues have been
affecting them and what policy changes they
wanted see. They talked passionately about areas
including:

47

the cost of living crisis,

care leaver hubs,
unaccompanied asylum seeking children,
transport, and

care experience as a protected characteristic.

The hybrid event was attended by 287 people,
representing 87 local authorities and partner
organisations.

—




The Social Switch Project
continues to partner with
Mayor of London’s VRU

Following three years of successful delivery and impact,
Catch22 was chosen to continue to deliver The Social Switch
Project for a further three years. Supported by our partners
Redthread, the programme will support 1,000 young people
and train more than 2,000 frontline practitioners by:

« upskilling frontline professionals on the opportunities
and risks the online world presents to young people, and

« providing a pre-employability programme for young
people that includes training modules on how to stay
safe online.

This new iteration of the programme also includes a
particular focus on violence against women and girls.

“The VRU is committed to working in
partnership with Catch22 and Redthread to
unlock the vast array of opportunities the
digital world presents for children and young
people to help them develop and thrive.”

Lib Peck, Director of London’s Violence Reduction Unit



49

Catch22 recognised for
county lines expertise

Strategic Director of Young People, Families, and
Communities, Kate Wareham, chaired Westminster
Insight’s “County Lines Digital Conference” It was an
opportunity to talk about the impact of our national
County Lines Support and Rescue service, and

learn about best practice examples of multi-agency
working — as well as hearing directly from young
people who have experienced county lines.

Our county lines expertise was also featured in a
special report on BBC1’s The One Show this year.
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Thousands of victims

in Greater Manchester
to benefit from Catch22
support

Following a competitive tender process,

Catch22 was awarded the contract to deliver the
Greater Manchester Victims’ Service: providing
comprehensive and tailored support to individuals
affected by crime.

The service becomes part of our portfolio of victim
services, which includes services in Hertfordshire

and Leicestershire, where we successfully won the
recommission this year.

“We are thrilled to have been awarded
the contract to deliver Greater
Manchester’s Victims’ Services.

This opportunity strengthens our
dedication to providing comprehensive,
compassionate, and empowering
support to victims, helping them
rebuild their lives in the aftermath of
crime, and creating a safer, more united
Greater Manchester.”

Andy Canniford, Chief Development Officer, Catch2?2
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Community Links report
highlights incredible impact

Our place-based support hub
in Newham, Community Links,

published its latest report
highlighting the incredible
impact it has across its core

areas of work:

Advice services

We helped 1,536 clients
with legal, debt, and
welfare benefits advice.

We helped clients generate
an income through
additional welfare benefits
and addressing their debts
to atune of just over £2
million during the year.

Young People

23 students, across two
cohorts, took exams in
Links Media College.

100% pass rate for Music
Technology, as well as
English Speaking and
Listening.

113 young people
completed our peer
mentoring programme in
East London schooals.

Community

The Community
Connectors programme
helped 800 service users
suffering from a serious
mental illness in Newham.

Three quarters of the 100
service users who joined
the Community Clicks
programme reported
feeling confident in using
technology by the end of
their provision.

Culture Within Newham
is helping residents shape
and take ownership

of Newham's cultural
possibilities through

a series of events and
engagements.

We distributed over 8,500
bags of food to over 3,000
people at our foodbank.

Health

We reached over 70,000
NHS patients in relation
to our cancer screening
projects.



#DoingThingsDifferently
in justice

Across 10 days, we showcased where our Justice
services deliver innovative models to support
people involved in the criminal justice system.
We shared how Catch22’s approach to topics

like service design, lived experience, academic
partnerships,and more is helping us make a real
impact.
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Catch22’s financial performance

in 2022/23 was strong, although
Restricted Funds fell during the year,
this was expected due to expenditure

of a significant grant (£2.8m) received

in 2021/22 and the commencement of
the winding down of the Catch22 Multi
Academies Trust Ltd (MAT). Unrestricted
Funds increased slightly and the overall
strength in the balance sheet has been
maintained.

Whilst grant income fell, due to the grant
received in the previous year, our income
from charitable activities increased

by 4%, this growth has been driven by
high retention rates of existing work
and expansion of delivery on existing
contracts together with new contracts
in Justice and Young People, Families
and Communities. Employability and
Skills income fell due to the ending of
the National Citizen Service contracts,
and the transfer of our apprenticeship
delivery to Simply One Stop Limited. As
we highlighted last year, we were not
able to grow our apprenticeship delivery
to the scale required in order to deliver
the impact we wanted and to ensure its
financially sustainability, and therefore
concluded that the interests of our
apprentices and staff would be better
served as part of a specialist learning
provider.

During the year we closed our event
management and hire trading company,
Community Links Trading Ltd t/a Links

Events Solutions, which was significantly

impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic and
despite the best efforts of its staff and
directors a return to profitability could
not be achieved.

Support costs have increased due to

planned investment to both grow and
further diversify our income streams
and to meet the requirements of our

operational teams, who are dealing

with increasing complex contracts and
service user need. Ensuring our corporate
services are both effective and inefficient
is a key focus for the next 18 months, as
the closure of the MAT is finalised and we
plan for the future.

Jobs22, our joint venture with the Angus
Knight Group, continues to perform well,
and the intention to extend the Restart
contracts for a further two years has
been announced by the Department

for Work and Pensions and commercial
negotiations are underway. We are
continuing to look for opportunities

to expand Jobs22’s delivery in the
employability and skills market and
expect to begin receiving dividend income
from 2023/24.

The value of our investment portfolio
increased during the year, and we remain
confident that the investment strategies
adopted by our investment managers
will deliver the total returns target of the
portfolio over the medium to long term.
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FUTURE PLANS

We continue to deliver our 3-year
business strategy that was launched

in September 2023 including one of
three key guardrails; that of ensuring
that the organisation is ‘financially
stable and sustainable; one true to its
social value DNA. Catch22 remains well
positioned financially and is meeting the
requirements of this guardrail by being
cash positive, meeting our Free Reserves
policy requirements and generating a re-
investable unrestricted surplus.

We continue to work towards to re-
brokering all the MAT academies to new
trusts and winding-up the company,
although the process has been delayed
due to continued negotiations between
the incoming trusts and the Department
for Education and the local authorities. It
is now anticipated that the re-brokering
process will be complete by late Spring
2024, with the transfer of the remaining
three academies.

We continue to be committed to the
delivery of Education and will look to
achieve this through the growth of our
independent school provision, starting
with the expansion of our delivery in
Wales.

Due to the closure of the MAT we are
likely to see a fall in income over the next
couple of years, but we continue to seek
to grow the organisation as we continue
to believe that scale offers financial
protection and allows us to continue

to offer a platform to incubate social
entrepreneurs and smaller organisations
to develop their ideas and secure their
future impact. We continue to think there
are particularly growth opportunities for
the organisation in Education, Justice,

a new victim support contract has been
secured in 2023/24, the expansion of
our children’s home offer and further

corporate partnerships focussing on
supporting corporate organisations to
deliver social value.

We also continue to seek mergers and
acquisitions with other organisations
where they can increase impact and
improve financial sustainability.

SUMMARY OF
FINANCIAL RESULTS

The group’s financial performance for the
year to 31 August 20283 is set out in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

Movements in the Restricted Pension
Funds and Restricted Fixed Asset Funds
relate to the operations of the Catch22
Multi Academies Trust (MAT). The
underlying financial performance of the
group is therefore better represented

by the movements on Restricted Funds,
decrease of £2.9m (2022:increase of
£2.1m) and Unrestricted Funds, increase
of £0.2m (2022:increase of £4.0m).

Restricted Funds, mainly relate to grants
received from corporate partners to
deliver specific projects which by their
nature are subject to variation year-on-
year, and the day-to-day operations

of the MAT. The operations of the MAT
resulted in a decrease in Restricted
Funds of £0.9m during the year (2022:
£0.2m), due to increased funding
pressure in the education sector and
additional costs incurred on school
improvement. The remaining decrease of
£2.0m (2022:increase of £2.3m) relates
to expenditure on projects where the
funding was received in the previous
year. For one project in particular, funding
of £2.8m was received during the year
ended 31 August 2022, of which over
£1.2m was spent during this financial
year.



The increase in Unrestricted Funds is
after net exceptional items expenditure
of £0.1m (2022: £nil). The exceptional
expenditure related to the disposal of the
group’s apprenticeship business during
the year. The increase in Unrestricted
Funds last year included the sale
proceeds of the sale of some shares in
Jobs22 amounting to £5.2m.

The group’s consolidated balance

sheet remains strong, with Restricted
Reserves of £3.3m (2022: £6.2m) and
Unrestricted Reserves of £15.9m (2022:
£15.7m). These reserves continue to
provide a solid base for the future of

the organisation and the trustees have
designated some of these reserves

for future projects, the amount of
Designated Reserves at the year-end
was £1.3m (2022: £1.1m) . The trustees
continue to place importance on a strong
balance sheet to protect the group from
continued inflationary pressure and
ongoing economic uncertainty which
will inevitably need to pressure on
public finances; whilst driving increased
demand for our services.

As a result of actions taken over recent
years including the sale of some of

the shares inJobs22, the group’s cash
position remains strong with cash

at bank and in hand of £7.7m £2022:
£9.2m). The fall during the year largely
reflects the reduction in Restricted
Reserves outlined above. The group is
not using any of its overdraft or working
capital facilities and during the year the
mortgage on its London headquarters
was fully repaid.

The group continues to take a ‘balanced
portfolio’ approach across its diversified
income streams, with some services
contributing a greater amount to the
cost of support services than others.
However, we continually review the
financial viability of all our services,

paying particular attention to those that
consume a disproportionate amount of
resources from our support services or
require significant additional support
to maintain or improve quality. Where
itis not financially viable for the group
to continue to deliver services, we are
proactive in taking

measures to restructure them to ensure
their future viability, or reluctantly close
them where necessary.
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Total income for the year to 31 August 2023 was
compared with

for the previous year.

In the previous year voluntary income included £0.3m of
pension liabilities transferred to another academy trust on
the re-brokering of the Everitt Academy from the MAT. After
adjusting for this ‘one-off’income amounts, income for the

previous year is £54.5m.

Ttherefore there was a small decrease in income for year
ended 31 August 2023 of



Donations, legacies, and
grants were 9% of income
excluding ‘one-offs’ (2022:
15%). The fall is primarily due
to a grant of £2.8m received in
the previous financial year for
a project which will continue
to be delivered through to
January 2024.

Income from charitable
activities rose by 4.6% to
£47.8m (2022: £45.7m).

The rise is due to new and
expanded delivery in our
Justice delivery through our
Commissioned Rehabilitative
Services, and new services

in our Young People Families
and Communities delivery,

primarily related to supporting

victims of county lines and a
full year of operation of our
first children’s home. This is
offset by our National Citizen
Service contracts coming to
end in our Employability and
Skills strategic hub and the
disposal of our apprenticeship
business.

Trading income fell to £351k
(2022: £517k) due to the
planned closure of Community
Links Trading during the year.

Investments income grew to
£404k (2022: £209k) largely
as a result of rising interest
rates.
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SUPPORT COSTS

Support costs increased by 10% during
the year to £5.4m (2022: £4.9m), partly
due to inflationary pressure but also
some continued strengthening of the
support teams and IT infrastructure.
Support costs are 10% of income
excluding the ‘one-off’amounts relating
to the MAT (2022:9%).

Our business plan sets out that our
corporate functions have an important
role to play as an ‘integrator’ and that
they will play a stronger role in delivering
our operational activities going forward.
During the year ended 31 August 2024
we have carried out a review, with some
external professional support secured
through our relationship with The Social
Business Trust, of the quality, capacity
and structure of our corporate services
and plan to introduce a new operating
model and new technology enabled ways
of working. Our aim is to enhance our
support functions to ensure that they
efficiently enable Catch22’s operational
hubs to excel.

NET GAINS/LOSS ON
INVESTMENT ASSETS

The net gain on investments during
the year was £0.3m (2022: net loss
£0.7m) and at 31 August 2023, after
withdrawals, the portfolio was valued
at £10.9m (2022: £10.6m), in addition,
income earned from the portfolio was
£0.2m (2022: £0.2m).

The trustees are satisfied with this
investment performance, given the
context of the performance of global
markets. During the year, the trustees
decided that to mitigate risk and
maximise opportunities that half of

the portfolio should be managed by
another financial institution, this change
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was executed during the year ended

31 August 2024. The portfolios are
diversified both in terms of asset classes
and global markets and is invested with a
focus on sustainability.

INVESTMENTS

All investments were acquired within
the Trustees’ powers. The portfolio is
held in general funds and is managed

in accordance with an Investment
Policy, which sets out the objectives of
the fund, considers risk and liquidity
requirements and sets out how the

fund should be managed including the
Board’s expectations around ethical and
sustainable investment. The objective of
the general fund is to provide a regular
flow of income to support the daily
activity of Catch22 and in addition, to
achieve a level of capital growth which
will preserve the real value of the fund
over time and provide a capital fund for
investment in approved development
projects within Catch22.

Our investment portfolio is managed

by firms of professional investment
managers. The Trustees consider the
performance of those managers and the
investment portfolios they manage to
be satisfactory and that our underlying
investments are sound.
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RESERVES

The Finance Growth and External Audit
Committee, on behalf of the Board of
Trustees, conducts an annual review

of the level of unrestricted reserves in
the general fund by considering risks
associated with the various income
streams, expenditure plans and balance
sheet items.

The level of Free Reserves that should
be maintained by the organisation is
determined by balancing two competing
objectives. On the one hand ensuring
we have maximum and prompt use of
resources to deliver real impact for
service users and realise our reform
ambitions and, on the other hand,
ensuring we have adequate resources
to continue to deliver our services
through periods of financial challenge
and uncertainty, and can be here for our
beneficiaries over the medium and long
term.

The trustees assess the risks that the
charity is exposed to on a regular basis
and determine a range for Free Reserves
considering these risks. The principal
risks include:

+ anunexpected change in the level of
our income;

« the need to maintain services over
the short term if funding streams
reduce;

+  the likelihood of unexpected
expenditure; and

« working capital requirements.

In determining the Free Reserves
trustees also consider future plans
for Catch22 and the need to protect
vulnerable participants staff and
volunteers in the unlikely event of
unplanned closure of some of its
services.

Whilst this process cannot come up with
a precise figure for Free Reserves, after
taking these factors into consideration
the trustees believe that the appropriate
level for Free Reserves is between £3.7m
and £5.9m for the group.

Free Reserves are those that are freely
available at the trustees discretion to
help manage financial variability i.e.,
Unrestricted Reserves excluding fixed
assets and bank borrowing secured
against those fixed assets.

At 31 August 2023 the group’s total
reserves amounted to £52.8m (2022:
£55.2m) of which £37.0m was restricted
(2022:£39.5m) and £15.9m was
unrestricted (2022: £15.7m). Of the
unrestricted amount trustees have
committed £1.3m (2022: £1.1m) over the
next 2/3 years to support the delivery

of the organisation’s business strategy.
These designated reserves will fund
projects to support the use of data

and analytics to evidence and improve
impact; improve the environmental
sustainability of the organisation; grow
its reach to more participants; develop
and capture the social value delivered
by the organisation;and ensure the
organisation’s support services are fit for
purpose.

Of the remaining unrestricted reserves
£8.9m (2022:£9.0m) is deemed to be
Free Reserves. This is above the policy
range (£3.7m to £5.9m) set by the
trustees, but they continue to consider

it prudent, given the current inflationary
pressure in the economy, the continuing
impact of the cost-of-living crisis on our
staff and service users and the impact of
current economic uncertainty on future
public spending to hold free reserves
more than the current maximum amount
set out under the reserves policy,

whilst they explore further ways to

invest the reserves to improve impact,
the organisation’s infrastructure and
financial sustainability.



Liquidity risk

The group’s objective is to maintain a balance between cash balances and
long-term investments. The group’s policy on liquidity risk is to ensure there are
sufficient cash balances to meet the day-to-day needs of the organisation while
investing surplus balances in fixed asset investments.

Market risk

The group’s exposure to market risk arises primarily from the group’s fixed

asset investments. The group’s policy is to utilise the services of professional
investment managers to manage the fixed asset investments. Performance of
these investments and therefore the investment managers is reviewed every
month by the senior management team. The Finance, Growth and External Audit
Committee have been appointed by the Board to oversee the performance of our
investment managers.

Credit risk

The group is mainly exposed to credit risk in relation to money due from
commissioners in relation to its delivery of services. The vast majority of these
commissioners have proved to be extremely credit worthy. Nevertheless,

we operate a proactive credit control system designed to ensure payment is
received quickly and that problems are identified as early as possible, and the
appropriate action is taken. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

Foreign exchange risk

The group does not have any significant exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Other risks

The impact of increasing inflation has been considered on the group’s future
plans and budgeting processes, and the potential impact of this coupled with
restrictions on future government spending, will continue to be a risk into the
year-ending 31 August 2024 and beyond.
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STRUCTURE,
GOVERNANCE AND
MANAGEMENT

FORMATION AND STRUCTURE OF THE
CHARITY

Catch22 was incorporated as a Company
Limited by Guarantee on 28 April 2008.

It was registered as a charity on 19 May
2008.

Its objectives, as stated in its
memorandum of association, are:

‘to promote opportunities for the
development, education and support of
young people in need to lead purposeful,
stable and fulfilled lives and to promote
safer, crime free communities for the
benefit of the public’

We have considered the Charity
Commission’s guidance on public benefit,
including the guidance ‘Public benefit:
running a charity (PB2). In particular, the
Trustees consider how planned activities
will contribute to the aims and objectives
they have set, taking account of the
available guidance on public benefit.

The trustees are satisfied that Catch22
has aims and objectives and carries out
activities that are for the public benefit in
that the support provided to individuals,
families and communities directly benefits
each of those groups and therefore the
wider public.

Catch?22 is the sole trustee of The Royal
Philanthropic Society incorporating the
Rainer Foundation and is the sole member
of The Crime Concern Trust Limited. Both
are charities. The Rainer Foundation has
released its permanent endowment and is
now dormant. Crime Concern is also now
dormant.

Catch22 holds 100% of the share capital
of Catch22 Social Enterprise Limited -
dormant.

Catch22 owns 100% of Pupil Parent
Partnership Limited, a company limited
by guarantee — dormant.

Catch22 also owns 100% of Catch22
Social Enterprise Solutions Limited —
does not trade but holds 49.49% of the
membership of Public Services Lab LLP,

a partnership focussed on delivering
public service reform in the Liverpool City
region.

Catch22 also owns 100% of Include, a
company limited by guarantee - dormant.

Catch22 also owns 100% of Catch22 Multi
Academies Trust Limited, a company
limited by guarantee — advances
education in the United Kingdom. This

is achieved through the operation of
alternative provision and specialist
schools for those young people either
excluded or at risk of exclusion from
mainstream provision.

Catch22 also owns 100% of Community
Links Trust Limited, a company limited by
guarantee — charitable objectives include
providing such information, advice and
assistance, as is charitable, to groups and
individuals. Currently delivers regulated
advice services on behalf of the group.

Catch22 also owns 100% of Community
Links Trading Limited - events
management, production services and
storage with any profits generated gifted
to Catch 22 Charity Limited. Ceased
trading in February 2023 and is winding-
up its affairs.

Catch22 also owns 100% of Ripplez CIC,
a company limited by guarantee — no
longer operating, winding-up its affairs.

Please see note 12 for disclosure of
activities and performance of each
subsidiary.



GOVERNANCE
Safeguarding

Catch22 is a diverse and dispersed
organisation supporting some very
vulnerable service users and we
recognise that safeguarding is the
responsibility of everyone. We are
committed to ensuring that all staff
are appropriately trained, including
all operational staff receiving NOCN
endorsed training, to ensure they are
aware of the signs to look for. Catch2?2
has a dedicated Safeguarding team,
responsible for ensuring policies and
procedures are in place and offering
safeguarding advice and training to
services. The Assistant Director of
Safeguarding reports into the Chief
Officers Group and regularly reports
to the Board of Trustees. The role is
focussed on continuous improvement of
our safeguarding practice.

InJanuary 2024 the trustees appoint
an Independent Safeguarding Trustee
to be a member of the Governance, Risk
and Internal Audit Committee, who will
provide additional support and advice
to trustees regarding safeguarding
matters. This role, along with the
Assistant Director of Safeguarding and
other operational leaders, is a member
of our Safeguarding Forum who meet
regularly to discuss emerging trends,
the effectiveness of our safeguarding
practice and to share learning.

Each Catch22 service has a DSL
(Designated Safeguarding Lead) and
a Deputy DSL. These positions have
received additional training and,
where appropriate, training from their
LCSP (Local Children’s Safeguarding

Partnership) in order to fulfil these roles.

Over this financial year, there were
various safeguarding incidents, as we

would expect given the nature of our
work, primarily made up of disclosures
made by the vulnerable young people
and adults that we work with. Where
appropriate these were escalated to the
relevant safeguarding authority.

We have an IT platform for safeguarding
incident reporting and management to
improve communication and reduce the
bureaucratic burden, both at the point
of reporting and in the administration
of monitoring, following-up actions, and
trend analysis so that more resources
can be focussed on keeping our service
users safe.

Modern Slavery

Catch?22 has a zero-tolerance approach
to modern slavery, and we are committed
to acting ethically and with integrity in all
our business dealings and relationships
and to implementing and enforcing
effective systems and controls to
endeavour to ensure that modern slavery
is not taking place anywhere in our own
business or in any of our supply chains.

We are also committed to ensuring
there is transparency in our own
business and in our approach to tackling
modern slavery throughout our supply
chains, consistent with our disclosure
obligations under the Modern Slavery
Act 2015. We expect the same high
standards from all of our contractors,
suppliers and other business partners,
and as part of our contracting processes,
we include specific prohibitions

against the use of forced, compulsory

or trafficked labour, or anyone held in
slavery or servitude, whether adults

or children. We also expect that our
suppliers will hold their own suppliers to
the same high standards.
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TRUSTEE BOARD AND COMMITTEES

The board of trustees are aware of its
duty under Section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006 to act in a way they consider,

in good faith, would be most likely, as an
organisation that exists to deliver public
benefit, to promote the success of the
charitable group to achieve its charitable
purposes, and in doing so have regard
(amongst other matters) to:

a) thelikely consequences of any
decision in the long term,

b) theinterests of the company's
employees,

c) the need to foster the
company's business
relationships with suppliers,
customers and others,

d) theimpact of the company's
operations on the community
and the environment,

e) thedesirability of the company
maintaining a reputation for
high standards of business
conduct, and

f) the need to act fairly between
members of the company.

On joining the board of trustees, a new
trustees will be briefed on their duties,
which are partly fulfilled through the
governance structure set out below,
including the delegation of day-to-day
decision making to the Chief Officer
Group. Trustees are also provided with
the guidance issued by the Charity
Commission ‘The essential trustee: what
you need to know, what you need to do’
and The Charity Governance Code.

All trustees embrace our vision to build
a strong society, where everyone has
good people around them, a purpose,
and a good place to live and promote our
organisational values to ensure:

we are compassionate — we care
about people, supporting them to
move forward

we empower others — we give
people the knowledge, skills and
opportunities to thrive

we are collaborative - we do things
with people, not to them

we are curious — we explore,
innovate and challenge to improve
what we do.

The trustees consider that they have
fulfilled their obligations under Section
172, as evidenced throughout this report.

An external governance review took place
during the year and whilst the review
evidenced strong governance practice
isin place, the recommendations for
further improvement are currently being
implemented and progress is overseen
by the Governance, Risk and Internal
Audit Committee.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Trustee board meets six times
ayear and has established three
committees to which certain functions
are delegated. These are: the Finance,
Growth and External Audit Committee;
the Governance, Risk and Internal
Audit Committee; and the People and
Performance Committee.

Each committee meets at least four
times a year and reports back to the
Trustee Board.

The committees monitor progress
against goals and targets that flow from
the strategic plan set by the Trustee
board.

Catch22 complies with ‘Good
Governance: A Code for the Voluntary
and Community Sector’issued by the



Governance Code Steering Group.

There is a scheme of delegation in
place which sets out what matters are
reserved for the trustee board and what
is delegated to the chief executive and
senior management.

Matters reserved for the board include
(among others):

e Setting the charity’s strategy;

* Approval of the organisational
business plan and annual
budget;

e Approval of any changes to the
group structure;

e Appointment of the chief
executive

Matters delegated to the chief executive
include (among others):

e Establishing joint working
arrangements;

e Development of new services;

e Tenders for new contracts (with
avalue of up to £10m);

*  Appointment of the executive
management team

VALUING OUR TRUSTEES -
RECRUITMENT, INDUCTION AND
ONGOING TRAINING

The People and Performance Committee
oversees the recruitment of Trustees and
undertakes a periodic skills audit of the
Board. Applications for Trusteeship are
sought through open advertisement, use
of a specialist agencies and personal
contacts. Applicants are assessed
against a trustee job description and
shortlisted candidates are interviewed

by a panel of Trustees and appointed by
the Trustee Board. Trustees are normally
appointed for three years and may be
reappointed for a further three years
subject to agreement of the Board. A
further three-year period is available if
itis considered to be in the best interest
of Board stability. The chair is also
appointed for 3 years.

New Trustees are provided with induction
meetings with key staff and are given a
detailed governance pack. Arrangements
are made for Trustees to visit Catch22’s
projects and services. Trustees receive
information newsletters, presentations
on aspects of Catch22’s work and on
matters affecting the voluntary sector.

Catch22 expects all those involved in

its governance to make a reasonable
commitment to ongoing development
and training. This may involve away
days, service visits, presentations and
other internal functions as well as
opportunities to attend relevant external
events such as seminars, courses and
conferences.

Catch22 also circulates publications of
general interest and provides access to
magazines, articles, newsletters, policy
briefings and other documents of more
specialist interest

SETTING PAY AND REMUNERATION
OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Setting Pay and Remuneration of

key management personnel is the
responsibility of the People and
Performance Committee. In setting
pay and remuneration, they consider
performance management information
and relevant benchmarks within the
sector.
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ENGAGEMENT WITH OUR PEOPLE

We recognise that our people, both staff

and volunteers, are key to the success

of the organisation and to delivering the

impact we seek for our beneficiaries. We
engage with our people through a variety
of channels to keep them informed, seek
their views, encourage their involvement
and develop common awareness. These

channels include, amongst others:

« regular service visits by the Chief
Officer Group and trustees,

« amonthly question & answer
session with the Chief Office Group,

« anannual staff conference which
trustees attend,

« amonthly newsletter, supported
with information on our intranet,

«  weekly email communication from
the Chief Executive,

« anannual staff survey and regular
pulse surverys

Information gathered by the senior
leadership team is fed back to trustees
via reports submitted to and discussions
held at the People and Performance
Committee.

BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS

We recognise that relationships with
business stakeholders are key to our
success and long-term sustainability.
Strong, collaborative relationships

with our commissioners and funders
enabled us to work with them during the
pandemic to find new ways of supporting
our beneficiaries and to respond to their
changing needs. These relationships are
also key to securing ongoing funding.

We also seek to engage with the wider
sector through professional bodies and

interest groups to both seek and share
best practice and collaborate on finding
solutions to shared challenges.

We value all our suppliers and look to
identify our key suppliers and put multi-
year contracts in place and adopt a
partnership approach to the relationship
where any concerns are worked through
together to find mutually beneficial
solutions. We also have several small
subcontractor organisations who deliver
services on our behalf,and we adopt

a supportive approach to contract
management and help them to build
their capacity.

We have also used our platform to
incubate several fledging social
enterprises focussed on delivering better
social outcome and reforming public
services.

ENVIRONMENT

We recognise the importance of
minimising our impact on the
environment and that environmental
issues are a significant concern for both
our people and those we support.

In April 2023, we recruited a
Sustainability Coordinator as a dedicated
resource to develop our environmental
strategy. Since then, we have been
working with suppliers and internal
teams to develop initiatives that can help
us minimise our environmental footprint
and improve environmental reporting.
Some of the initiatives include:

« Introducing new processes to
improve data quality and quantity
to feed into our Carbon Reduction
Plan. This will allow us to measure
our carbon footprint more accurately
and establish a more holistic
approach to reducing carbon
emissions,



Working with suppliers to improve
environmental reporting and align
processes towards becoming Net
Zero,

Working with Business Development
to identify premises improvement
funding opportunities, with a focus
on sustainability,

Identified and shortlisted software

Establishing a Sustainability
Champions network to allow
collaboration and raise awareness
across different areas of our
organisation,

Engaging contractors with high
standard environmental credentials
to roll out new waste and recycling
services at sites where have control
of waste collection. This also

providers to analyse our carbon
emissions, for better quality
reporting,

includes raising awareness and
educating our staff to waste less
and recycle more through active

- Encouraging environmentally engagement.

friendly behaviours and Sustainable
Travel by offering our employees the
Cycle to work and Low Emissions Car
salary sacrifice schemes.

Our consumption and emissions for 2022/23 were as follows:

ENERGY TYPE CONSUMPTION EMISSIONS
Gas 2,208,621 KWh 404 tC0O2e
Electricity 748,002 KWh 155tC02e
Transport * 836,701 miles 2241C02e
Total Emissions 783 tCO2e
Intensity ratio per £Em/turnover ** 14.6 tCO2e

*Transport includes employee mileage claims, car hires, long-term vehicles leases and owned
vehicles

** Turnover excludes MAT land & buildings transferred (2021/22 intensity ratio 11.9 tCO2e)

Our intensity ratio has increased due to increased use of buildings and more business
travel following the transition in ways of working following the Covid-19 pandemic, but
we are confident that the measures we are putting in place will reduce both our total
emissions and the intensity ratio in the future.
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TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Trustees are responsible for
preparing the annual report and the
financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees

to prepare financial statements for
each financial year. Under that law the
Trustees have elected to prepare the
financial statements in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice. Under company
law the Trustees must not approve the
financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group
and charity and of the surplus or deficit
of the Group for that period.

In preparing these financial statements,
the Trustees are required to:

+  select suitable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently

+ make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable and
prudent

« state whether applicable UK
Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements

«  prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the
Charity will continue in operation.

«  observe the methods and principles
in the Charities SORP.

In so far as the trustees are aware:

« thereisnorelevant audit
information of which the charitable
company’s auditor is unaware; and

« thetrustees have taken all steps
that they ought to have taken to
make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to
establish that the auditor is aware of
that information.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that

are sufficient to show and explain the
Charity’s transactions and disclose

with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Charity and
enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Charity
and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

Financial statements are published

on the Charity’s website in accordance
with legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements,
which may vary from legislation in
other jurisdictions. The maintenance
and integrity of the Charity’s website is
the responsibility of the Trustees. The
Trustees' responsibility also extends to
the ongoing integrity of the financial
statements contained therein.




RISK MANAGEMENT

The Trustees have in place a robust risk management process, which includes their
overall risk appetite and their risk appetite specific to different risk categories. The
process identifies the types of risks the charity faces, prioritises them in terms of
likelihood of occurrence and potential impact, identifies the means of managing
these risks and monitors how they are managed. Development and review of the

risk management arrangements are the responsibility of the Governance, Risk and
Internal Audit Committee who meet quarterly and review the risk register. The Chief
Officer Group are responsible for managing risk across the organisation and receive
regular updates from the Head of Governance and Risk at their monthly meetings on
key risks, and they ensure that appropriate mitigating action is taken.

The internal audit programme is agreed annually with the Governance, Risk and

Internal Audit Committee and focuses on the key areas of risk within the organisation.

Audit findings and progress on implementing actions is reported quarterly to the

committee.

The key risks identified by Catch2? at the end of 2023/24, which are largely
unchanged from the previous year, together with the actions taken or intended to be
taken in response to these risks are as follows:

(RISK | MITIGATING ACTIONS

Failure to keep our
service users safe.

Loss of income due to
public sector spending
cuts because of the
macro-economic
climate, in addition

to rising costs due to
inflationary pressure
and the need to
support staff through
the continuing cost-of-
living crisis.

Established policies and procedures with clear
training and staff competency expectations embed-
ded throughout the organisation, monitored through
regular supervisions and internal audit, overseen

by Assistant Director of Safeguarding. Designated
safeguarding leads appointed in all our services.
Safeguarding incident management systems in place
across the organisation Risk Forum established to
quickly identify concerns and trends and implement
mitigating action and Safeguarding Forum in place to
share best practice.

Continued focus of resources in our business develop-
ment and partnerships teams, maintaining our diversi-
fied income streams, keeping our quality high to secure
repeat business and our costs competitive to ensure
that our cost basis is sustainable over the longer-term.
We also continue to be focussed on building and main-
taining strong commissioner and funder relationships,
securing an increased proportion of voluntary grant
income and developing income streams from trading
activity along with ensuring our support teams are
appropriately structured and deliver value for mon-

ey. Financial performance, future forecasts and our
income pipeline is regularly monitored by the Finance,
Growth and External Audit Committee.

71



72

Loss of control of
personal or sensitive
data

Failure to ensure the
wellbeing and safety
of staff, particularly
those working

with vulnerable
beneficiaries.

Serious incident results
in adverse publicity
leading to reputational
damage.

Lack of organisational
capacity due to chal-
lenges in recruiting and
retaining staff.

MITIGATING ACTIONS

Mitigated by robust data protection and information
security policies, in line with the General Data Pro-
tection Regulation (GDPR), supported by staff brief-
ings and compulsory training. We review the risk of a
breach of our IT platforms on an ongoing basis and take
appropriate mitigating action to keep them secure. We
hold Cyber Essentials Plus certification and 1ISO27001:
Information Security Management certification for our
core central processes and infrastructure, along with
our Justice probation contracts. The whole organisa-
tion works to the principles of the same Information
Security Management System and over time we intend
to expand the scope of our ISO27001 certification.

Our People team continuing to develop our wellbeing
offer and our policy on staff supervision meetings
includes the requirement to discuss staff welfare.
Increased focus on mental health support within the
organisation. We have a professional health and safety
team in post with embedded health and safety polices
and procedures, underpinned by compulsory training
for managers and regular health and safety inspec-
tions with follow-up of actions. Incident management
system in place across the organisation to enable us
to react more quickly to incidents, learn lessons and
identify trends, which is reviewed by the Risk Forum.
An enhanced Employee Assistance Offer has also been
rolled out to support any members of staff who have
been affected by serious incidents.

Appropriate policies and procedure are in place to
mitigate the risk of a serious incident occurring. Critical
Incident policy in place and crisis management training
provided to key staff. Reactive communication strategy
prepared.

Catch22’s employee value proposition, future of work
approach, and new pay and grading structure all in
place. Developing progression pathways and succes-
sion planning. Staff engagement plan in place and
being monitored by pulse surveys. New continuous
performance management approach on place based on
quality conversations. Focus on reducing staff turnover
by a working group of senior leaders.



RISK | MITIGATING ACTIONS

Loss of commercially Catch?22 have created an Al working group, have updat-
sensitive information ed existing policies and handbooks to advise of correct
through the misuse of use of information, including issuing guidance around
Artificial Intelligence advocated systems to use — Copilot.

(A1) technology.

Increased likelihood Assessment of at-risk Local Authorities within our

of Local Authorities delivery portfolio to understand and quantify organisa-
(LAs) going into section  tional risk. Proactive conversations being had with LA
114 measures (Where leads on all existing contracts with particular focus on
forecast income is those contracts due to be retendered in the short-term
insufficient to meet and LAs where section 114 measures are already in
forecast expenditure) place.

resulting in LA's looking
to exit existing delivery
contracts.

Further information about Catch?2, including our Annual
Review can be found at:

www.catch-22.org.uk

Signed on behalf of the Board of Trustees on 28 May
2024.

T@W%DU?M.

Terry Duddy
Chair, Catch22 Charity Ltd
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AUDITOR'S REPORT
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CATCH22 CHARITY LIMITED

Oplnion

We have audited the financial statements of Catch 22 Charity Limited (the ‘parent charitable company') and
its subsidiaries (the ‘group') for the year ended 31 August 2023 which comprise as the Consclidated
Statement of Financial Activiles, the Consolidaled and Parent Charltable Company Balance Sheets, the
Consclidated Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting
palicies. The financial reporting framewark that has been applied in thelr preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice).

In aur opinion the financial statements:

+ give atrue and fair view of the state of the group’s and the parent charitable company’s affairs
as al 31 August 2023 and of the group's incoming resources and applicalion of resources,
including Its Income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

= have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basls for oplnion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) {ISAs{UK}) and
applicable law. Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Respensibililies for the auwdil of the financial stalements section of our report. We are independent of the
chatitable company In accardance with the ethical requirements that are relevant te our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
respansibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtlained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concem

In awditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trusteas’ use of the going concem basis of
accounting In the preparation of the financial statements Is appropriate.

Based on tha work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
condltions that, Individually or colleclively, may cast significant doubt on the group’s ared parent charitable
company's abillty to continue as a going concern for a perlod of at least twelve months from when the financlal
statements are authorised for issue.

Cur responsibillties and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concemn are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report therecn. The trusteas are responsible for the other information contained
in the annual reparl. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the olher information and, except
to the extent atherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

Cur responsibillty |s 1o read the other Informatlen and, in doing so, conslder whether the other information is
mater|ally Inconsistent with the financlal statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistendes or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements themselves, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there |s a
materlal misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report In thls regard.

_lassification : Official



AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the trustees’ annual report for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistenl with the financial
statements; and

- the strategic report and the trustees’ annual report have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Mattars on which we are raquired to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and parent chatitable company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the
strategic report or the trustees’ annual report.

¥We have nothing to repont In regpect of the following matters where the Companles Acl 2008 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinian:
+ the parent charitable company has not kept adequate and sufficient accounting records, or
retums adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
+ the parent charitable company's financial statements are net in agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or
= certain disclosures of rustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
= we have not recelved all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Rasponsibilities of trustess

As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement set out on page 70 the trustees {who are
also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the
preparailon of the financlal slatements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal conlrol as the lrustees determing is necessary 1o enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the group and parent
charftable company's abllity to continue as a going cancern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate
the group or parant charitable company or to cease operations, or have ng realistic atternative but to do so.

Audltor's responsibllities for the audit of the financlal statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from malerial misstaternent, whelher due to fraud or error, and to issue an audltor’s report thal Includes
our oplinion. Reasonable assurance |s a high level of assurance, bul Is not a guaranlee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or errer and are considered matarial if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expecled to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements,

As part of an audil in accordance with 1SAs (UK) we exercise professional [udgement and maintain
professional scepticlsm throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or arror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
rasulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the overrlde of Internal control,
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AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's responslbillties for the audit of the financial statements {continued)

= Qbtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing
an opinion oh the effecliveness of the group and parent charitable company's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the trustees.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the rustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
evenls or conditions thal may cast significant doubl on the group and parent charitable
company's ability to cantinue as a going concern. If we conclude that a malerial uncenainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up fo the date of our auditor's report.
Howaver, fulure events or conditions may cause the group or parenl charilable company to
cease 10 continue as a going concern.

» Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business aclivities within the group to express an epinion on lhe consolidated financial
stalements. We are respansible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solety respensible for cur audit report.

We communicate with those charged with govermnance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intermal control
that we identify during our audit.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws arkl regulations. We design
procedures In line wilh our responsibliiies, oullined above, to detect materlal misstatements in respect of
irregulatities, Including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting Irregularites,
including fraud is detailed below.

The objectives of our audit in respect of fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the financlal statements due to fraud; to obtaln sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
assessed risks of material misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate
responses o those assessed risks; and to respond appropriately to instances of fraud or suspected fraud
identified during the audit. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detaction of fraud
rests with both management and those charged with govermance of the charitable company.

Our approach was as follows:

«  We obtalned an understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the charitable
company and considered that the most significant are the Companies Act 2008, the Charities Act
2011, the Charity SORP, and UK financial reporting standards as issued by the Financial Reporting
Council,

+ We cbtained an understanding of how the charitable company complies with these requirements by
discussions with management and those charged with governance.

»  We assessed the risk of materlal misstatement of the financlal statements, including the risk of
material misstatement due to fraud and how it might aceur, by halding discussions with
management and those charged with govemance.

+ We inquired of management and those charged with governance as to any known instances of non-
compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations.



AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

» Based on this understanding, we designed speciflc appropriate audit procedures to identify
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. This included making enquiries of
management and those charged with governance and obtaining additional cormoborative evidence
a8 required.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware
of instances of non-compliance with laws and ragulations that are not closely related to events and
ransactions reflected in the financial stalements. Also, the risk of not delecting a materlal misstatement due
to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate
concealment by, for example, forgery or infentional misreprasentations, or through collusion.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Acl 2008, Our awdil work has been Lndertaken so that we might state 1o the
charltable company's members those matters which we are required to state to them in an auditor's report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
any party other than the charitable company and charitable company's members as a body, for cur audit
work, for this report, or for the opinlons we have formed.

James Saunders (Senior Statutory Auditor) 29 May 2024
for and on behalf of Moore Kingston Smith LLP
Slatutory Anditor
29 May 2024
9 Appold Street
London
EC2A 2AP
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING AN

INGOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT for the year ended 31 August 2023

Restricted Resticted Restricied Unresiricted Year to Year to
Pengion Fixed Funds Funds 31 August 21 August
Funds Assets 2023 2002
IMAT} Funcs
Nute {MAT)
00 £000 £000 £00D £'00 000
Income from
Donalions and legacies 2 - 170 3 481 623
Grants 2 550 2379 1,540 4,468 7.535
CDonallons — acadenty Kansfers
(AT a - - - 262
Income rom chariable aciviles & - 18696 25078 47,774 45,744
Income from trading activities - - 361 51 87
Income from invasimenis - - 404 404 205
Tatd Incame - 550 21,245 31,694 53,489 54,781
Expenditure an
Raising funds - - 361 231 286
Charitable activities
Ordinary actelles & 137 1.144 23088 31,727 56,006 55,724
Excapfional & - - - 110 110
Trading activities - - 386 266 518
Totd expenditure 137 1,144 23,088 32,564 56,933 56,5306
ket gain on disposal of associate 11 - - - 5,200
HMat gainzi{losses) on invasimenis 11 - - 3ne e {724}
Share of resulis of associated
underaking 11 - - 146 146
Net {expencdiiureMincome
for the period {137} {594) {1,843) [4185) (2,989} 27%
Transfers between funds 17,13 368 {1.017) 648 -
Net {expenditure Yincome before
other recagnised gainsXlosses) {1an {225) {2,260) 233 (2,085 am™
Qlher recoghised galnsilosses)
Actuarial gaindloss) on defined
brenefd penson scheme 21 653 - - 903 5,830
Net movement in funds 526 {225) {2,060) 2533 (2,326} 6,561
Reconciliatlon of funds
Taotal tunds brought forward {526} 233,867 8,169 15,682 §5,202 48,661
Total lunds canled forward - 33672 2,308 15,915 52,806 55,222

The Group had no recognised gains or losseg olher than thosa dealt with in e Slatemen] of Financial Activilies.

All inzome and expenditure derive from continuing activities.

The statemer prowdes the consolid aled wformation for the chamtable company and ta subsldlary undertalangs  Total moome for 1he
charllatle company alone was £36 802k (2022: £41,986k) and nel expendiiure was (£1.786k) (2022 net meome £6,302k),

The notes on pages 82 to 108 form part of these financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET - 31 August 2023

Company number: 06577534

Fixed assets
Intanpible assats
Tangble fixed assete

Investments

Current assats
Stock
Debilors

Cash at bank and in hand

Curren! Nabilities

Credilors: amounls due wathin one year

Het current asssts

Craditors amounts Talling due afier mare than one year

Frovisions

Met assats

Funds

Resiricted pension funds
Restricted fixed assst funds
Restrictad funds

General fund

Hote

10

17
17
17
18

31 August 2023 31 Auguel 2022

£000 £000 £'000 £000

202 237

39,168 39,479

11,119 10,695

50,439 50411
53 %
6.041 7.253
F.675 9.243
13,763 16.522
{10,811) {10,407}

2,958 6,115

53,447 56,526

{551) 778y

- (528)

52,306 55222

- {526)

33672 33,897

3309 6,169

15918 16,682

52,896 55 222

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees on 3 April 2024 and authorised for issue on 28 May 2024.

Ty Doy,

Terry Duddy
Chair

The notes on pages 82 to 108 form part of these financial statements.
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CHARITY BALANCE SHEET - 31 August 2023

Company number; 06577534

Fixed aczals
Irtanpible assats

Tangible fixed assels

Irvesiments

Cunreni assets
Stock
Dabrtors

Cach at bank and in hand

Current Kabilities

Craditors: amounts due within ane year

Ne1 curvent assets

Credilors: amounts falling due after mors than one year

Net aszots
Funds

Restricted funds

Genaral fund

Note

10
"

13

14

15

17
18

31 August 2023 31 August 2022

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

202 237

5.4% 5.565

10,858 10,590

16,568 16,302
53 2
5,621 £,642
6,221 7 048
11,895 13,717
,304) {2,020)

2,501 4,688

19,067 21,080

551} {778)

18,516 20,302

2.892 4,878

15623 15,424

18,515 20,302

As pemmbted by £408 of the Companies Acl 2006, The company has nol presenlsd its own slaternent of financial achvities and
income and sxpendilure account, The company’s net expendilure in 2023 was {£1,7686k} (2022- net income £6,202k}

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees on 3 April 2024 and authorised for issue on 28 May 2024.

) N uod
}5\1 y b‘ ,DU,\'//\}‘/[).

Terry Duddy
Char

Company Ragistration No. 08577534



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 August 2023

Het {expendlture¥income for ihe reporling period
Adjusted for:

Procesds fram sala of sharas in assocated company
MNed {gainsKlosses on invesbmenls

Share of profils of associate

Loss on disposals of tangible fixed assets on academy
fransfer

Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assels

Loss on disposal of mtangible fived assats
Deprecialion chargas

Amortisalion charges

DCefined benefit pension schema deficil ransferred out on
acaderny transfer

Defined benefit pension schemea cosl less conlibutions
payable

Definad bensfit pansion schams fmance cost

Interest receivable

Investment income receivable

Irterast payabla

Capilal granls received

{Increasay Dacraase in stock

Decrassed|ncraase] in dabibors

Inereasef{ Decrease }in lizbiliizs

Met cash {used in}provided by operating activities

Investing acllvities

Cash inflow from gales of sharas in associatad company
Purchase of inlangibla fixed assets

Purchase of tangible fited assels

Capital grants recaivad

Proceeds from sale of inveslments

Interest received

Investmert income recsived

Met cash generated from investing activities
Financing Acilvities

Mew borowing

Pepayment of borrowings

Interast paid

Het cash used in financing activities

Net {decreasejfincrease in cash and cash equivalents
in the reporting pericd

Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Relating to:
Bark balances and shart-lerm depasits

Cash and cash equivalents

Note

11
A
11

3,10
10

10

21
e |

11

10

Year to
31 August 2023

Year to
31 Avgusi 2022

£000 £000 £000 £000

{2.989) 2,7M
- {5, 200)
309 724
(146} -
- 1.058
. 190
. 25
375 422
a3 a6
- {262}
115 802
22 a8
{156 {2)
(248) (203}
16 18
(550) {60}
{27} {18}
1,212 {1,402)
267 742

{2,325) 614
. 5,200
{58) 10)
{64) (265}
550 &0
55 61
156 2
204 302

863 5,260
- 125
{90) 122}
(16 {18

106) {15)

{1,568) 5,843

9,243 3,304

7,675 0,043

7675 9,243

7675 9,243
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 August 2023

1. Aseounting policies

A summary of the principal aecounting policies adopled (which
hawe haen applied consisiently axcep whers naled), udgernmnis
and kay sources of esfimated uncartainty, is sat out balow,

Calch2 Charity Limiled Is a chamable Gomprly {no. 0667 7334}
limidracd by d in Land and Walas and
regisierad with the Ghamy Commission {no 1124427), The
raglstared officals 27 Pear Tree Sreet. London EC1Y 386

Basie of preparation

Bagis of conzoldation

Tha didatad fnancial 1S incoq those of Catch22
Charity Limited and all iz subsidiaries together wiih the group’s share
of the resulls of assockatas.

On isttion of subsidian dsifion accounting is used, Al of
the assets and liabilifies that exist 8t the date of acquisition are
recorded at their fal values reflecing thaelr conditimn at that date,
Whaera subsidiarias are acouired for nil conzid aration and arm akin to
agltt, the falr value of the assms and babdiiles at the date of

The firandal hava been prepared in | with
tha Financisl Reporting Standard applizable in the UK and
Republic. of keland (FRS 102), The company is a public benefit
anbity for the purpases of FRE 102 and a regstersd charlty
asiablizbed as & company limited by guarantee and thersfers haz
alse prepared Its financlal stalemenie m acesrdance with the
Statamen! of Recommended Practlce apphcabla e chantlas
praparing  thesr accounis in ascordance with the  Financial
Repariing Standard apgdicable o the UK and Repubbc of Ireland
(the FRS 102 Chaniles SORP) and the Companlas Al 2006,

GOy sorcat

The frusieas have assessad whalher the use of the going concem
basiz is appeopeiata and hawe considersd poassible evants or
eandillons thal meghl cast slonlficant doubt on the abdity of the
charliabla group to contiue 23 & gung concem. The fusiaas
heve made this assessment for a period of &t leas one year from
the date of approval of the Mnanclal stalemeniz. b parbeular. the
trustees have consldared fhe chadtabe company's forecast and
projeciions and have consikiered the potential impact of the widar
aconomic envirgnmeni on the viability of the charitable group. The
wusteds have taken aclion in previous yaars to rationalise the
charilable group 10 seve ¢a31 and srengthen fis finandi el pasiion,
Meoving forward the trustess will confinus to review the wabdlity of

Esllion ans |zed as volurlary [ncome in the statement of
financial activities AN changas 1o those aszets and liabilities and tha
rasudiing surpluses or defiits that arise aferihe group has gained
conir of The subsckany are charged to the post-acquisiton sfatemant
of financial actrities. All inra-greup fransachons and balances
batwean group companles are eiminated on consaldailan.

The results of assocdales am accountsd for using the aquity method
of aceounting. YWhera the group has no obbaailan 1o fund losses of
the aszockia. he share of accurmulaied bsses are not recognised
the accounts, and the invesiment is shown as zero.

Income

Al meome iz recoghised when thare i antidament 1o the furds, the
recapl |2 prabable, and he ameounl can be measured rebably. The
falowing accounting pobclas are appiled o income.

Grartts and feas

Where confract and grani funding i subyec! to speclile perdfumance
condiions, the inceme is recogrised as earned (as The related sendces
are provided or gulcomes delivered). Any amounts recaned in sxgess
of what has been aarmed by the year snd are includad within defsmed
ingame in current liabilties, Cther grant income is recognised where
there is eni it, receipl 1= probable. and the amaount can be

services that are not oore 1o ils objectives and are not financiall
sustainable, In adkdition. they are apen 12 furiher mergers into the
charilabls group thal will deliver furher impact whilst improving
financial swengh, Annual budgsts and forecasts have besn
revised teking this i account with prudent figures for both
Incorne and expendliure, The chadty has an mvestnent porifolio
held in ralatively liquid funds valued 21 €10 B7m as 21 31 August
2023 with a cumeni avallable working capital faclity secursd
agalnst this of up 1o £2.72m Enl drawn as at 31 Aogust 2023 and
at the date of signing these accounts) This fazility iz curmently
bl gy renawed, bul the trusiees axpact that il will ba renewsad on
aimllar terms. In addition, there i3 a E0.5m unsacured overdraflt
fazility 2vailabla with Bardays Bank plc (Enil wtilised at 31 August
2023 and &t the date of dgning these accounis), With the cash
hefd (£6.22m al 31 August 2023, This amounts 1o £94m of
raadity sai ash, without liquid ating the investmant portioli,
showld I be required. Ater making engulrles the rusiess have
mncluuad that there 15 a reasonale expectallon ihat me
has adacy 1 It

opwaratemnal exls]snce far the foreseeable fulure. The chamable
comipany therefors conbinues 1o adopt the golng aoncesn basas n
praparing iz financial statemenis.

The flnancnal stalemanis are prepared In steﬂlng which = the
y o tha ch

d with iant reliabilin
BDonaticns
Donations and all other raceipts from fundraizing are reported gross

and are agoounied for on 8 receivable basis, The related fundraising
ooty are raported In costs of ralsing funds.

favesiment fncome
Ivasiment incone iz accounted for when recelvable and mcludes the
ralatad tax eorrerable,

Expendilure

Liahilitias ara recognized onca thara is a legal or constnuctiva obligation
o fransfer sconomic bensdit to 2 fhird party, it is probable thata fransfar
of aconomlc banafit wil ba required In setiement and the anount of
tha obligations can ba d reliably, &l ditura iz

far on an accruals bases and has been clazslfied under headmas thal
agoragate all costs relaiad o the category. The folwwlng accouniing
policias araa apglisd 10 axpan ditursa;

Attacation of overfead amd suppon Cosis

Orverhead, support and costs are allocated the
oast of ralang funds and chaniable actwles. Overhead, support and
govemance csls relating ta chaniatle activitles hava bean

d batwean achivi

ara rounded b the nearast thausand pounus

The charity has isken advartage of the exemplion in the
Companles Act J00& not ta present itz awn stalemant af nanalal
acilviles, The resulls of the charlty for The yaar endesd 31 August
202% are set oul here: tolal Income of £3% 802k (2022 B4 956K}
tofal expenditure of £41,357k (202 £401680k). rel gam on
inwestments £305 (2021 €724k} nat loss ). nel gain on dlsnosal
of assodates £nil {2022 £5.200k} resulting in net o

Goventance 0osis
Govemance cosis are included within support coziz and consist of
tuslees’ expenies and annual audit and nen-audt fees.

Costs of rafsirg furds

The costs of generaling funds consis! of mvesimen! management

fams and the costs of raising funds, mcludlng &N apportionment of
20515,

funds of (£1,795k) (202288 302K).

A summary of the principal aecounting policies adopad (which
have been applisd corsistently, except whers noted), pdgements
and kay sources of esfimalion uncertainty, iz set out belma;

rhead, support end govemar

Chardabla achivhes

Costs of charitable activilies inchide grants payable and other casts
direcily azsoasied with providing the services and suppar provided
by the charfy and @n apportionment of cwerhead, support and
QOVEMANGE CO515.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 August 2023

1.A m

Expenditure icontinuad]

Trading acthuices

Geosts of trading activibes Include cosis directly assodated wih
providing the services provided through frading and an
apporfionment of overhead, suppor and governance cosis.

Intangible Assets

Developmeni cosis for fulure IT projects are capitalized ai cosi,
providad it is likaly fo bring future sconomic bansfi to the group
N ihe Griteria for recognifion a3 assels are nol mel, The expense
I5 v rsed m the it of M |2l activities in the parkd
in which it is incumrad, Capitalized [T costs include all diract and
indireci gosis thai are directly attributable o the development
process. The cosis are amortized using the siraightdine methad
ower 3 1o 5 yaars being their esfimatad usaful lves,

Capltalsation of azzats

Aszats with 2 value of greater tham £10.000 {and soma |ower
value wehicles and IT equipment with an estimated useful life of
atlaas! 4 or 3 years raspactively} are capliahsed and
depreciated 10 write off the cost of the assels over thair
extimated ugehul lves.

Tangihle fixed assats

Land and buildings and equipmant ars stated in the balance
sheel at cost or, In the case of cerlan freehold and [ong
laasehold [and and buildings, valuabon lass depeaciation which
|3 pravaded I equal annual msiakmente aver the eshmated usaful
lIfe of the assats. The rales of depreclation ara.

Frashold property = 2% per annum

Long leasehald proparty — over lamm of lzass

Sharl leasahold property —aver term of kease
Furniture and equipment — 20% and 33% per annum
Molor vebucles = 25% pey annum

PR B

Goodwill

Sooduwlll rapresents the axcass of the cost of an acqulation over
the Falr vabug of the Group's shara of tha Kentilable net assets
of the acqured subsidiary at the daie of b Goadwill
has bean amorad on @ strahiding baas over hree or fve
PEAE,

Inwastmants

Wvastnvents are statad al matkel value at the balance shaet
date. Any change in the markel value of invesiments 1s taken to
he redevant fund fagather wath any proflis o losses on dizpasal
of [nvestments durmng the year.

Wvestnwat in aseomates s held a1 cost less accurmulated
impaiment |osses

Slock
Btocks are valed al he lower of ozl and nel realisable value.
Ciost is based on the cosi of purchase on a first in, firs! out basis.
Mel realzable valus e bazed an actimeted selllng prics less

dditional costs to ion andg di 1}

Finanelal instrumenits

Cash and cash equivatents

Giash and cash equivalents inglude cash &t banks and in hand
ahd shorl-teym depoas wiih 8 maiunty date of threa monthe or
lass,

Debiors and creditars

Cwbtors or craditors receivable or payable within one year of the
reporting dele are camied at their transaction price. Debtors and
cracliiors thal are raceivabla o payable o rore than one yaar
and rot subject 1o 2 market rate of injerest are measured at the
present value of the erpecied fulure receipis or payment
discounted at a market rate of infarest.

Employes benafits

The costs of shart-lem smployes benefits are recognised a5 a
lisbility and an expense. The cazi of any unused holiday enitement
|5 recognlzed m the perlod in which the emplyes's services are
received,

Termination benefiis are recognized mmediately as an expense
when the charity is iited o i the

t of an employee or lo provide b tion benefits.

Pension costs — Defined Contribution Schemes
The Group makes 1o deflned abution perslon

on behalf of qualifying amployess Such confributionz ara charged in
the Statament of Anancial Aclivities a5 they fall dus The
confribuiens are invezied separately from the charity’s aszels.

Pension banefits — Definad Banafit Pengion Schemes
Ratlramant bensllls 10 srmployess of the Satch2? Mulll Acadarmees
Trust {MAT} are prwvided by the Taachers’ Panzion Scheme (' TPS)
and tha Local Gowerrment Pension Schema (LGPET), These are
dafwed banefli schemes and The assats are held separatedy from
thaza of tha MAT,

The TPS |s an unfundad achene and conthbuhons are calcualed so
a3 1o spread the cost of pensions over employass' waeking Beas with
the MAT in such a way fhat the parzion cost is 2 substantially level
parcentage of curren and future penslonatde payrdl. The

contribubiions are delermnmad by the Govenment &ciuary on the basis

of quadrarmal valuatlang uelng a prospective unit credd mathad, As
staled In note 21_the TRS 15 a mul-employer scheme and theras
Insufficlent Information available to use deflned baneflt accounting,
The TP is therefore reated a3 a dafined contribution scheme for

accoLning punposas and The contribullons recoanised o the pedod 1o

which thay relaie.

The LGPS are fundad schemes, and the assets are hald saparately
from those of the MAT in separate rustes sdminkstersd funds.
Pension schemea assetz are measured at far value and habilfies are

regsured on an acluadal basis using he profecied wl eredlt meth od

and discounted 31 a rate equivelent to the current rate of retum on &
high-quality corporate bond of equivalent ferm and curency 1o the

liabiltigs, The actuarial valuations are oblained a1 kast tiennially and

are upkdated a1 each balance sheet dale The smourds cherged to
operafing surplus ere the current zarvice costs and the costs of
zchanme | I Dbenefit I I

They are included as part of staff costs as meurred Mel nteres! an
the nat deflned benefl kabdity/assel i dse recognised In the
Statement of Financial dotivities and comprises the nfarest cost on
the defined bensfit obligation and interes! income on fhe scheme
assate, caloulalad by multiplying the fair value of fhe scheme assets
at the baginning of tha periad by the rate used to discount tha banafit
oblgations, The difference betwsan ihe inlaresi moome on fhe
schane assels and the actual retunn on the scheme assets |5
recognised in othar rezognised gains and losses, Actuarial gains and
losses are recognis ad mmediately in other recognised gains and
lozses.

Leated assels
Rental COSIS Lncer ofrrating keases are charged Lo the statement of
financial activiies in acual amoLnis over the pariod of the kases,

and e,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 August 2023

1. A + i 1 . o

In kind funding/suppornt

The Group bensfits from the services of sacondees., many
thousandz of woluniary hours and unclaimed out-of-podvet
eapensas by a vary large number of supporters. I addlbon,
CHTIpANIEs, rganisafiors and individuals have. in many cases,
provided the uze of facilities. equipment ard premizes for
warious activifies and mestings without charge, Tha value of
sugh gifts in kind have been esfimated and included in the
consalidated siatement of inancial activilies as income and
aupendinire whaen thera iz a cost to tha third party of donating
the gifi'serice Although our systems are nol set up o
summarize he iotal walue of thesa gifts in kind. we do know they
ara worth in axcess of €100k {2022 £10K), This figure doas not
inchude a value for the volunteer work which is indispersabla 1o
the wor: that the Group underiskes.

Taxatlon

The brla corpany s tor pass the 1esis sel oulin
Paragraph 1 Schaduls £ of the Finance dct 2010 and therafors it
meeels the definiiion of 3 charitabls company for UK corporation
tax punp A LS lally &xempt fram taxation
in respam of inconme or capltal galns raceivad withn calegoriss
cavarad by part 11, chapber 3 of the Comoratlan Tax At 2010 o
Hacilon 256 of the Taxatlon of Chargeabla Galns Act 1992, 10
tha aiant thai such income ar gains are apphed axcusvaly for
charilabls purposas,

Fund Accounting
The group malntams vadsus typas of funds as follows:

Resticted Pension funds

Restricted pansion reserves are rezources or liabilities relating to
the group's obllgatkns 1o the Local Gavarnimen Pension
Schema, of which some of i3 employees sre nrembers,

Resticted Mred assel funds

Resticted fived as5e! funds are resources whidh are 1o be
applied o spacific capital purposes imposad by funders where
the asset acaguired of areated |s held for 2 specihc pupose.

Restacted funds
Restricted funds reprezent grant, donations and kegacies
received which are alocated by the donor for specHic purposes,

Unrasticked funds

Revaluation resenves relate ko the measurement of he fair value
of certaln frashold property, Deskanated funds ars funds that tha
trustess have dasignated to be used for spacific purposes
Genera| unresmricted furds represent funds which are
axpendsble at the dizcretion of the trusteas in the furlharance of
tha objects of the Chanty,

Critlcal accounting #3timales and arees of Judgement

h prsparlng ﬁnancnal statemants itis necassary to maka cartain
ard ions that affect the amounts

recognisad in the Ainangial The Tollowing juck

anc Bstinates are conzidarad by 1he frusieas ta have mast

agnilcant effect on amounts recognlsed In the Tnanceal

statemants.

8] becal Govermment Pentsion Scheme habdbfy
Tha prasant walug of the Local Governmwnt Pengion
Schemes defmed boneft llablity depends an & number af
tactars that are dedarmmed on an aciuahal basls using 2
warlaty of assumpllons,

The ions usedin the net cost
{Incame} for penslons Include the discount rate. Any
h I thes e | which are dlscl 1 In nate

2. wall impact the carrying amount of the panzion liability.
Furhemore, a roll forward approach which progects results
from the latest full 2ctuarlal vakliallon performed at 31
March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valung the
prenckons hatulily at 31 August 2023, Any diferences
betweeen the igures derived from fhe roll forward approach
and & full actuarial valuation would impact ¢n the camying
armouni af the parelon lablity .

b

o

dl

€

Local Govemmen] Pension Soheme fabiiy (confimmed

The ulimnates rezponsibility far sethng ihe asaunphors 15 that of
tha trust, a3 the employer, b eadh year the
LGPS actuary proposes A stardard se of assumptions as par
of the valuaiion sxerdss. using their expert opinion, and which
comply with the accounting requirements, The academy must
has. in practice wiih moen employers adopted the

re: ded plians.

Ome of the key assumplions is the dizcount rate, which i3 the

I d rate of long.d I returns. This year the
diszount rate of 5,3% is higher than the rate of 4 25% used in
he prior year as fhe bord Wield 8t 31 August 2023 is highsr at
allierms than s 34 Augusi 2022, Since a higher discound rale
maans tha present valua of liabilities is lower. this esuliz in
bowvar overall net Babilitiss

Damagraphic assumptions hava baan adopted in Ene with those
used in the most recent actuarial vakuation a5 at 3 March 2022,
with he excaptlon of an update of the CKIL 'Sanilnuous Martallty
Invastigation’ projection modal, which has been based onthe
more recently published updated standard mortably projecilons
mocel ‘SKI_2022' which has been used as the basls for
moraliy assLmptions, Updating the futies improvarments mogde
1o the CMI 2022 modsl Fas reduced assumad life expactandss
whach results in an nprove to the balance shael positon.

Ugefed Economic Lives of Ifangble Asssls

The annual amorisaton charge for mtanglble assats 13 senslthe
1o changes In the estimated lves and resldual valies of the
assels, The useful economic Bves and resicual values are
reazzessed annually. They are anwnded when necassary o
reflect qurrent eslimaies, based on techrological advances,
futurs investmants and economic ufilization. Goodwill and
computer sofiware impaimiant reviews are periomied annually,
These reviews require an estimation of the value is use of the
cash generaling units to which goodwll and softwars has been
alkrcated and the puble benefllt devbed from he services
provided to beneficiaies in fulilment of the company and groups
chantable objectvas.

tpait of fn i 5
I i f reviews of i tment in zubsidiares are camied oul
annualy Thess revicws feduire an estmabon of botn the
expected fulure cash on of the char o
which the i ralate, and reralion of tha pubdlc

benafit darived from the servzas provided o bansficiarias in
fulfilment of {he company and group’s charflable objectives.,

Land and buikdi Ferred o COMyEersi

Long keasahold fils of land and buildings has bean ransiermad to
tha Catch2 Mull Academles Trust (MAT) at Enll consideraten,
Tha preami hawve baen izad in the MAT's accourts at
1he best eslimate of their fair value a3 at 1he date of ransfer This
was esimeted a1 the most receni velusfion igures provided by
tha fransfarting local authoeity, a5 2 bast approsimation of fair
value.

i of Lang L hokf Larrd & Buldn
Impaimmend reviews of long leasahold lard and bulldings are
carthed out annually. These reviews ragulre an esiemation of ther
matked valug of tha land and buildings and tha poblic banaf
demved from 1he chadtable group's serviee: pravided ta
il m fulfil of the and group's chantabla
obfacilves, The valuations were ey lawad duding the yaar and tha
Trustess consider thal this is the best estimate of the fair valus 81
1ha balance shest date.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 August 2023

Comparative Consolldated Statament of Financial Activities for the year endad 31 August 2022

Restricted Restricted Restricted Unresiricted Year to

Pension Fixed Funds Funds 2 Augusi
Funds Agsets 2042
{MAT) Funds
Note {MAT)
£00 £00 £00 £'000
Ingcwne Trom
Denations and legacies z . . 3 518 523
Grants 2 - 60 6,128 1347 1,536
Donations — academy Fansters
{MAT) 3 262 - - - 262
Income from chantable acivitles L] - - 16,477 25267 45,744
Income from radng activitles - - - 517 57
Income from investments - - - 208 208
Total income 262 B0 23611 3,858 54,781
Expenciture on
Raising funds - - - 206 296
Charitabl e activities
Ordinary aclivilies G 1.23¢ 2,83 159,847 H.804 55 Ta4
Exceptional 6 - - - -
Trading activiies - - - 516 56
Total expenditure 1,229 2,834 19,847 32,616 56,536
Med gain on disposal of assaciale 1" 5,200 5,200
Med gai EEes] o ifvestment: 11 - - - {724) {724}
Met incometfexpendlture)
for the period 1977} {2774} 2764 378 2,
Transfers between funds 17.18 379 - 1E21}) 242 -
Net incomel{expendture) before
other recognised gainz{losses) 598} {2,774} 2,142 3,960 2™
Qther recognized gaine/i{losses)
Actuanial gainiloss) on defined
benetit pension scheme 21 3,830 - - - 3,820
Net movement in funds 2,232 {2774) 2,143 3,060 6,561
Reconciliation of funds
Toial funds brought forwand {3.758) 26671 4025 .72 448,661
Total funds camed torward 1526} 32,807 6,160 15,682 55,222

The Group had no recognised gains or losses other than those deall with in the Siatement of Foancial Activities
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 August 2023

2. Donatlons, legacles and grants

Year to 31 August 2023

Year 1o 31 Augusl 2022

Fized Asset Restricted Unrestricted Total Fixed Asset Restricted  Unrestricted Total

Restricted funds. Restricied funds

£'000 £'000 £°000 £7000 £000 £'000 £7000 £000

Employabihty and skills - 1445 1.344 2,794 - 4784 995 5,779

Educaton 1] - 0 G600 60 - - G0

Juslice - 1 78 80 - - 22 22
Young peopls, Tamilies &

comruniliss - 855 206 1,061 - 1175 B56 1831

Ohar - 248 177 425 - 178 192 367

550 2,549 1,861 4,960 60 6,134 1,865 5,059

The group has banafited from the support of several privats donars, Tusts, foundations and corporats ertities including The Social Business Trust,
3i, Barclays Bank ple, The Clothworkers' Foundshon, The Hadley Trust, Salesforce, Microsoft, The Rothschild Foundabon, National Grid, City 8
Guilds, Tale & Lyle and Ufi Voo Tech Trust among others The group has also received grant funding from national and local govemment,

3. Donations — academy transfers (MAT)

Transler of existing academies oul of 1he acadamy rust {note a)

a)  Transfer out of academy

During the pravious year the Eventl Academy transfered oul of the Cateh22 Mulli Academies Trust. The below assels and liabilines
transfarred with Evearitt Academy, Thers wers na transfers oul of academies in the curren year

Tangible Aixed azsels
Long leasshold land and buildings {included with sxpenditure on ordinary activilies)
Fangion schame assols
Pansion schema habiltiss
Het asseletliablilion) translarmed

Classification : Official

Year i Year to
1 August 3 August
2023 2022
Restricted Restricted
Pension  Fixed Assets
Funds Fund
£7000 E00D
- 262
- 262
Restricted  Restricted
Pension Fixed Total
Fund Asset Restricted Furls
£000 £000 E000 £000
- {1.068) - {1,958}
{262} - - {262}
524 - - £24
262 1,958} - {1,696}




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 August 2023

4. Investment Income

Inzome from invesiments receivable
Interest recenabla

All prior year investmenl income was slzo wrestricied

§. Net Income for the year

Thisis slated afler charging:
Depracialion of 1angible lixed assels
Lose on digposal of 1angible hxed assels
Loss on disposal of 1angible fixed assels — academy biansfer oul
Amortisation of goodwill and intangible fixed assets
Logs on chspogal of inlanaible ived assels
Properly rental
Auditor's remunsralion
Audt faes far Charily's annual accounls
Audit fees for other services:
- the audil of lha Charity’s subsidianias, pursuan to legislation
- other l2es and laxation advice
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Year to Year to

Restricted Unrestricted 31 August 31 August
funds funds 2023 2022
£900 E'000 £1000 £1000
248 248 209

- 166 156 -

- 404 404 209
Year to Yaar to

31 August 31 Auigpast

2023 2022

£1000 £'000

375 422

- 190

- 1458

93 96

- 25

1,04 1,081

45 39

30 22

12 20




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 August 2023

6. Charltable actlvities

Analysis of income from charitable activities for the year endad 31 August 2023

Restricted  Unrestricted Year to

Funds Funds 31 August

2023

£900 £000 EQaD

Employatility and skills 1,261 3.461 4,922

Education 13,267 4,824 18,001

Jushce 131 13,108 11236
Young people, families and

communities 4,037 TABT 11,504

Other - 21 b1 |

Total 18,695 29,078 47,774

Analysis of income from charilable activities for the year ended 31 August 2022

Restricted  Unresiricted Year to

Fundls Funds 3 August

2022

£000 £'000 E000

Enployability and skills 1.274 8,163 9437

Education 12,645 6,004 18,649

Justice 255 9,784 10,054
Young people, familics and

commuries 2,303 5213 7516

Dher - &8 &8

Total 16,477 20267 45,744

Analysis of expenditura on charitable activities for the year anded 31 August 2023

Restricted Resfricted Restricted Unrestricted Tear to
Penslon Funds Fixed Funds Funds 31 August
Assets 2023

Funds
£'000 £'000 £7900 £000 £000
Employatulity and stalls - - 4,443 5,035 9,478
Education 137 1.144 13,444 Fald 22,239
Justice - - 132 11,48 11,450

Young peopla, familiss and

commurnhes - - 4,790 7777 12,567
Olher - - 274 53 332
Exceptional ilems {see below) - - - 110 110
Todal 137 1,144 23,088 31,837 56,206

Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities for the year ended 31 August 2022

Resiricted Restricted Restricted Unrestricted Year to
Penslon Funds Fixed Funds Funds 31 August
Asseots 2022

Funds
£'000 E*000 £7000 £€7000 E000
Employatulity and skills - - 308 8.515 12,796
Education 1239 2834 12,236 a8 23,590
Justice - - 255 9447 9,597

Young paople, familiss and

commurnhes - - 3293 5,908 9201
Other - - [i¥] 58 140
Total 1,239 2,834 19,547 31,604 55724

Inchded wllhin wirestricled Income and expendiiure I Jusiice chantable actl«llles |s Income of £361K (2022 338k) from Ihe Local
Leadership and Inlegration Fund wilh relaled expenddure of £351k (2022 £386K), The progect starked dunng the year ended 31 August 2021

Alzo included within wnrestricked income and expenditure in Employakbility and skills charitable aclivilies Is income of £216k (2022: £nil) from the NCE
Trusiin respect of the Open-1o-All programme with related axpenditure of £218k (2022: £nil). The project slarisd during the year ended 31 August 2023,



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 August 2023

6. Charitable activities (continuad)

Support Costs

The group operaea a shared serdees approach wiih the ma|aily of support services beng provided by CakehZZ Charly Limited 10 the other companies
within the group Suppo cosls Incurred directly by olher compames withln he group, manly relating ko management and adminlsiratlon. are Inchaded
within the direct costs of the aclwdy Garrled oul by thal company An analyss of the cosl of suppor services (which are includeo In 1he chandable

ted 1o ot

expendilure abovel provided by Calch22 Charlty Limlled 1o the groupis sel oul below. Cosls have been all

Ihe dirac] expendilure incurred on thal activly.

Year Ended
M Augusl 2023

Raising Funds
Charitable actlviles:
Emplayability and skills
Educalion

Justice

Young people, families
and communilies

Oihet

Trading activities

ear Ended
31 August 2022

Raiging Funda
Charitakle activitles:
Employability and skills
Educatlon

Juslice

Young people, families
and commurnilies

Other

Trading activities

Exceptional Items

as a proporon of

Dispozal of appranliceship delivery

Business
deve!upment, Compliance
ing and Faciliti Finance and Human Management and righ
cumm\lnicaﬁms &IT commercial  resources and strategy management Total
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'00D £°000 2000
] ] ) ] 2 ) 3
160 188 13 231 &z 1u? 203
377 387 325 £ 163 72 2,005
104 160 163 280 69 141 1,081
Fak 218 183 306 108 155 1,184
5 5] 5 3 3 4 H
549 ars 819 1,366 486 B39 5,284
] ] 5 ] 3 4 3
881 8T fivat) 1,385 492 B33 5,251
Govemance costs ncluded in ihe abowve support costs amount o £75k (2022 F&1k)
Business
devalopment,
marketing and Finance Compliance
communicaticn Facilities and Human  Management and risk
] EIM  commercial  resources and strategy  management Total
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'00D £'000 000
4 [ 4 & 3 3 o]
193 251 159 278 123 13 1,115
I8 453 298 514 231 212 2,081
146 180 121 209 83 26 das
138 120 114 199 i) 21 am
2 3 2 3 1 1 12
a7 1,082 634 1,201 537 493 4,864
B 10 i3 11 5 5 45
840 1,108 704 1,218 545 501 4,025
Included within Cast of Charilable Aclivities are The fallowing exceptional items
Year to Yearto Year to Year to
31 August 31 August 31 August 31 August
2023 2023 2023 2022
Bonmdilelmd u 4t do Total Total
E'000 £'000 E'000 E'000
- 110 110 -
- 110 110 .

Total
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 August 2023

7. Staif costs

Salaries

Redundancies

Nalional Insurance conlrbulions
Pangion conlnbutions

The average number of employess during the peniod split as follows:
Charitable Aclivibes

Trading
Supporl

Taolal

During the pariod payments 0 agenciss for temporary staff amounted 1o £3 080k (2022: £2 492k}
Apency stafl are usad to cover temporary vacances and 1o meaed short-term neeads.

The number of employees whoze annual amoluments were £50.000 and above excluding pension conlribufions were as follows:

£60.001 - £70.000
£70,001 - £80.000
£80.001 - £60.000
£90,001 - £100,000
£100,001-£110.000
£110,001-£120.000
£130,001-£140.000
£160,001-£170.000

Emplayer's pension conribulions of £170,675 (2022: £230 462 ) were paid on bahalf of the above slaff.

Yearto Yearto
31 August 31 August
2023 2022
E'000 £'000
H A7 28,681
177 120
3173 2410
2182 2,698
36,649 35418
1027 458
4 5
&9 il
1120 1042
Year to Year to
31 August 31 August
2023 2022
E*000 £000
10 13
T 7
2
- 3

No fruslees receivad any remuneration during the period {2022: none ). Trustees were reimbursed expenses during the year of £nil {2022: £nil).

Key Managamem Parsonie!

The tolal employes benwefits of the Key Management Personnel werg £793 200 (2022 £1 065 565}

Volurdesrs

The average number of volunleers for the year 10 31 Augusl 2023 tolalled 76 {2022 303 9 volunleers worked in Juslice, 65 worked in Young

people, familiss and communilies and 2 worked in our other delivery hubs.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 August 2023

8. Intangible fixed assets — Consolidated

Cost

1 Saplember 2022
Addilions

31 Augusi 2023

Amortisation
1 Saplember 2022
Charge for the year

31 August 2023

Net book value
At 31 August 2023

AL August 2022

9. Intangible fixed assets — Charlty only

Costs

1 Saplember 2022
Addilions

31 August 2023

Amertisation

1 Seplamber 2022
Charge for the: year
31 August 2023

Net book value
At 31 August 2023

Al 31 Augusi 2022

Computer
Softwars  Goodwill Total
£4900 ET000 £4900
425 345 770
58 - 58
483 345 828
188 345 £33
93 - 93
281 345 626
202 - 202
237 - 237
Computer

Software Total

£000 £'000

425 425

58 56

483 483

188 1588

a3 93

281 281

202 202

237 237
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10. Tangible fixed assets — Consolidated

Cost or Revaluation
1 September 2022
Addilions

Translers

Disposals

M August 2023

Depreciation

1 September 2022
Transters
Dizposals

Charge for the year

M August 2023
Net haok value

At 3 August 2023
Al 3 Anguat 2022

10. Tangible fixed assets = Charity only

Cost ar Revaluation
1 Seplembrer 2022
Addilons

Translers

3 August 2022

Depreciation

1 Seplembrer 2022
Transters

harge for the year

M August 2023
Net book value

At M August 2022
Al 3 Angust 2022

Long
leasehald Shor Freehold
land and  leaseholed land & Furnilure &
buildings  properties bull dings aogulipment Total
£'000 £000 £'0{0 £'0{0 £'000
45477 - 725 a5 46,633
- %] - 64
(161} 161 - -
- {83) 183
45,316 225 725 68 46,634
6,861 - 113 200 7174
8 8 - .
- {83) 123)
=76 21 13 55 Irs
T.128 30 126 132 7.446
28,188 195 589 186 30,168
38,616 - B12 25 39,479
Lang
leaschold Short Freehold
land and leazshold land & Fumiture &
buildings  properties bulldings aquipment Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'00 £'0H0
4,808 725 368 w81
- 64 - B4
(161} 161 - - -
4647 225 725 268 5,965
&7 113 136 6
@ e -
a3 21 13 46 133
m ki 126 132 480
4,516 108 200 185 5,406
4,721 - 612 232 5,565

The leasehold property at 27 Pear Street, London of £3.4m has been arrived at on a basis of valuation carried out as at 31 August 2019 by JM Commercial, Chartered
Surveyors who are not connected with the company. The valuation was reviewed in the year and the Trustees consider that this is the best estimate of the fair value at

the balance sheet date.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11. Invastment In subsidiarles and associates - Consolidated

Investment Investment
in in
Associates  Subsidiary Total
£'000 £000 £000
Cost
31 August 2022 108 475 475
Shara of profit 146 - 146
M August 2023 251 475 726
Impament
1 Saptember 2022 - 475 475
Chame for the year - - -
31 Augusi 2023 - 475 475
Mat book valus
At 31 August 2023 251 - 251
AL 21 Augusl 2022 105 - 105
11. Investment in subsidiaries and associates — Charity only
lnvesh'nsn:nt Imesmept
in in
Associates  Subsidiary Total
£'000 £000 £000
Cost
31 August 2022 - 475 475
Shara of profit - - -
31 August 2023 - 475 475
Impairment
1 September 2022 - 475 475
Chame for the yaar - - -
3 August 2023 - 475 475
Nel book value
At 31 August 2023 - - 105
A3 Augusl 2022 - - 105
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11. Investments — Consolidated

Invesiment in associate — Jabs 22 Limiled
Invesiment in associated LLP
Other investmenls at market value

Invesiments at market value

Quoled invesiments
Cash held by investmani managsars

Unlisted investments

1 Seplember 2022

Acquisilions sl cost

Disposal proceeds

Increasef{decraase} in cash in tha porfolio
SBhare of associate proht

Change in market value

MWarket value at 31 Angust 2023

Histonc cost at 31 August 2023

HSBC — aquity
HSEC - fixed income
HSBC - eash

Other - listed

Other — unlisted

Associates

Carrying value
1 Saptember 2022
Share of net profit
31 August 2023

3 August 31 Avgust

2023 2022

£000 £000

146 -

105 105

10,8568 10.590

11,119 10,695

10,434 10,043

423 £42

256 10

11,119 10,695

10,695 11,673

5,190 16,581

(5.219) {16.637)

2} {108}

145 -

209 (724)

11,118 10,685

10812 11.081

31 Avgusi 2023 31 August 2022
Warket valus Original cost Market valua Original cost
£000 % £000 £000 % £000
FA87 G5 G960 B 703 &3 B 836
3.243 29 408 334 31 3,488
429 4 429 L ¥ 3 L ¥
4 - 4 4 - 4
256 2 110 110 1 110
11,119 100 10912 10,695 100 11,081
Associated

LLP  Jobs22  Total
£000 £000  £900

105 - 105
- 146 146
105 146 251

Thea charity owns 18% of 1he equity share capital of Jobs 22 Limited (2022 16%) In 1he previous year, 1he charily sold 27% interest in the
ordirary share captal of Jobs 22 Limited. The net sale proceads were £5.2m and the shars of e associgles loss was £nil. The addrass of e
registered office of Jobs 22 Limited is 289 Silbury Boulevard, Millon Kaynes, MES 1NA.
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11. Investments — Charity only

95

31 August 31 Avgqust
2023 2022
£7000 £000
Investiment in associale — Jobs 22 Limited - -
Qlher investments al marked value 10,668 10.550
10,868 10,590
Quoted Mvestmants 10,434 10,042
Unguoted nvestments 5 s
Cash held by inveslment managers 424 542
10,868 10,590
1 Seplember 2022 10,530 11 468
Actuisitions at cosl 5100 16,501
Dizposal procesds {5,219} {16.637)
Increasel|decrease) n sash in the portfoho 12} {108)
Change in markel value 308 {724}
Markot value at 31 August 2023 10,868 10,580
Historic: cost at 31 August 2023 10,807 10,976
31 August 2023 31 August 2022
Marke1 value Qriginal cosl Market value QOriginal cost
£7000 % £000 £000 % £1000
HSBC - syuities 7.187 66 6,960 5,708 63 6,936
HSBC - fixed income 3,243 30 3409 333 32 3,459
HSBC - cash 429 4 429 542 5 542
Olher - listed 4 - 4 4 - 4
Other - unlisted 5 - 5 5 - &
10,868 160 10,807 106w 100 10,976
12. Subsidiaries
The charity 1 the parent of the following subsidiznes;
Aggregate
amount of Tumowver Surplus/
assets, incl. {deficit)
Couniry of Registered Level of liabilities invest forthe
MName of subsidiary inzorporation Office Activity control and funds income  Cogsts year
£000 €000 €000 £'000
The Royal Phianihropsc England and iR Dormam 100% - - - -
Sonely moarporallng Wales
the Rainer Foundation
Charity Numbar
229132
Crime Concem Trust England and {1} Dormant 100%:
Limited Wales.
Company Number,
02253076

Charky pimbey
SO7I5S
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12. Subsidiaties {continusd)

Aggregate s(:z:i';ﬁ
amound of Turnoyer forthe
assets, Incl. r
Country of Registered Level of liabilities invest Costs 000
Mame of subsidiary incorporation Ofice Activity control and funds income 2000
£'000 £'000
Calch22 Social England and o)) Dormant 100% (B4B)
Enterpriza Limied ‘Walas
Company Mumbet:
OG1G6785
Calch22 Socal England and &)} Providing traning and 100% {5 - - -
Enmerprise Solubons Wales employmenl apportumbes
Limited for the wnemployed
Company Number:
aFITI80
Pupil Parenl Farinership England and ¥ ] Dormannt 100% -
Limitad Walas
Comparry Number:
4872659
Include England and (2} Dormannt 100% -
Comparry Number: Wialas
02420781
Charlly Mumber
0803333
Caich22 fullh England and [#4] Advancing for the public 100% 34218 13,808 14473 (574}
Academies Trust Wales benefit, education in the
Limited UK through 1he operaticn
Company Mumber: o attemative provision
2268181 schools
Community Links Trust England and 53] Community delivery and 100% 3 123 120 3
Limited ‘Wales early support and action
Company Member:
O2BBTTRZ
Chardy Wumber
1018577
Community Links England and %] Evenis management, 100% (457) 158 34 (195)
Trading Limitad Walas production services and
Company Momber: storage
OST37745
Ripplez Community England and ¥ ] Suppor vulnerable 100% {85 1 {1}
Inferast Company Walas women and familias
Company Momber:
O7I84600

The list of Registerad Officas is set out balow:

1] Redlory Lodge, High Sireed, Brasled. Kerd, TH16 JF

(2] 27 Pear Tree Streel, London, EC1Y 3AG
(3] 105 Barking Read, London, E16 4HO

The lollowing changes laok place during he financal year.

Al Communlly Links Trading Limled

A denaon was made for the company 1o ¢ease operalng i February 2023 and the company |s no longer rading.
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13. Debtors: amounts due within one year

Consolidated

Grant and trade debtors
Other debtors
Prepaymenis and accrued income

Inchuded within glher deblors s £250k due in more than one year {2022- £500k)
Charlty only

Grant and frade debtors

Olher debiors

Prepayments and accrued income
Amounds cwed by olher group companies

Inciuded within olher deblors is £250k duz in more than one year {2022: ES00k)

14. Craditors: amounts falllng due within one yaar

Consolidated

Bank loan

Trade credilors

Accrued expendiure and income in advance
Oiher taxes and =ocial security

Olher creditors

Inchuded in dher creditors are outstanding pension corribukons amounding to £261k {2022 £225k),

3 August 31 August
2023 2022
E000 £7000
2857 a0a

T8E 1079
2,503 2160
6,041 7.252
2540 2336

83 i)
308 2375

L] 522
5,421 G642

31 August 3 August
2023 2022
£000 £000

73

1.111 1,150
007 ¥.332
1,366 1.250
1.33r 562
10,811 10,407

The chanlable group has an overdral facilty o £5m secured by a fixed charge over the Investmenis of the charlly, 1S prowded by HSBC Privale Bank
and & repayable on demand and interesiis charged a1 1 25% above the base rale. amounl drawn Sl (2022: £ml) In add|bon, the charltable group has a
£500K unsecured gverdraft avallabie friom Bardays Bank wilh inleresl charged al 3% above the base rale, amounl drawn Enil {2022, L),

Charlty only

Bank loan

Trade credilors

Accrued expendiure and income in advance
CHher taxes and sooal saecurnty

Oiher credilars

Amounds owed by olhar group companies

Inchuded in dher creditors are outstanding pension contribulions amounting to £115 {2022 £104k),

73

&1 51
6,220 £,520
1.21€ 1123
1,181 443

126 -
0,304 9,026

Also [nduded within olher creddoes is a loan from an assoclated company ol £7 20k (2022 £nll). 1 |s repayable o demand and noanlerest |s charged

The chanly has an overdral laclity of £5m secured by a flxed charge over the sivestiments of the charlly, 1 1S provlded by HEBG Privale Bank and |5
rapayable on demand and inlerest is charged ai 1.25% above Ihe base rate, amaounl drawn Enl {2022, Fnil}. In addilion, the charily has a £500k
unsecured overdratt available from Barclays Bank with interest charged at 2% above the base rate, amourt drawn Enil {2022 Enil).
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14, Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Consolidated — deferred incoms movement

Balance at 1 Seplembar 2022
Amount released in iha period
Amourl deferrad in the perad

Balance at 31 August 2023 — all due within ene year

Charity only — deforred income movemesnt

Balance at 1 Seplembar 2022
Amount released in ha period
Amouwnl defarred in the penod

Balanca at 31 August 2023 - all dus within ane yaar

15. Creditors: amounts falling after more than one year

Consolidated
Other loan
Other creditors

Charlty only
Other loan
Other creditors

£000

5,290

{5,290}

5,232

5,232

£000

5,025

{5,025}

4,047

4,947

31 August 31 August
2023 2022
£000 £'000
74 96
472 582
551 778
73 a6
472 682
551 778

Included wilhin other loans is a loan of £125k recewvead i October 202 and 1= repayables over B4 months. The amount outstanding at the 31
August 2027 is £96k (2022 £113k} - shown 2z £70k {2022; £96k) dus in mors than ong year and £17k {2022: £17k) due in less than one year

The laan is secured by a floaling charge over the charily's assets Interest is charged at 3%,

Ineduded in other cradilors is the clawback of fnding relatng Lo non-delivery by subconilraciors. The repayment lerms have besn areed over 4

o § years.
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186, Provisions

Consolidated
Pansion fur deficit fnote 18)

17. Restricted funds

Consolidated

Balance ai 1 Septamber 2022

Income

Experviture

Transfars between funds

Actuarial gainiflass) on defined henefit pension scheme
Balanze at 31 August 2023

Charity caly

Balance a1 1 September 2022
Incorme

E=penditure

Transfars between funds
Balance at 31 August 2023

The gpacific purmoses lor which the funds sre to be applied are ag follows:

Restricted pansion funds

90

31 August 31 Angust
2023 2022
E'000 E"000
- 526
- 526
Rasiricied Resiriciad Todal
pension  fixed asset Resdricted Restricted
funds funds funds funds
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
1526) 33,897 &,16% 39,540
- 550 1,245 21,795
{137} {1,144} (23,068} (24,369)
- 368 {1,017) {G48)
663 - - 663
- 33,672 3,300 36,081
- - 4,878 4,878
- - 7,883 7.883
- - {0,540} {9.540}
- - {319} {319}
- - 2,893 2,583

These arise in CatchZ2 Mulli Acadernies Trusl and represent the negative reserve in respecl of the: iabibity on the LGFS defined
benefit pension scheme. Al 31 Augusl 2023 the LGPS pension scheme was in surplus and therefore thers is no reserve {see

Hote 213,

Restricted fixed asset furms

These arise in Calch22 Multi Academies Trusl and rapresent the net book valus of the land and buildings of academies

Wansferred from the local authorly on conversion.

Restricted funds

Thesa arise Trom donations. grants and fees to fund sclivifies or senices as spedfied by the danor Income reprasents
donations. grants and fees from govemment bodies and corporale and trust donors Expendilure represents expendibure an
specific sarvices linked 1o these rastricted donatons, prants and fess. Resmeted funds also ncluds e activines of the

subsichary comparyy, Cateh 22 Mulli Acaderes Trust Limibed .
An analysiz of restricted funds by activty 15 set out beloaw:
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17. Restricted funds {continued}

Transfers between funds

Restricted pension funds: £nil (2022 £379k) - s represents the aclual ernployer contnbutions in year to the LGPS scheme,
rarsferred from resticted funds in the Cateh22 Mull Academies Trust

Restricted fixed asset funds: £369k {2022 £nil} - s represents property maintenance expendilure ransferred 1o resiicted
funds in the CatchZ2 Mulli Academias Trust

Restricted funds: (£1,017k} (2022: (£621k}} Translars relaling to the Calch22 Multi Acaderniss trust. as described above
amount b (£380k} (2022: {2373k} A further (£228k} (2022: (£242k) represenls nel charges for services belwesn the Chanly
and Cateh22 Multi Acadernies Trust, Iransferred fromf{io} general funds, A furber (£319k} (£2022; £nil} relates Lo funds on a
contract that the charity ceased to operate several years ago, which after careful rewvew, the ruslees no longsr consider to be

rastrictad.
Prior year
Restricted Restricted Total
petision Mixed assel Restricted Resircled
funds funds funds Funds
£'000 £'000 £000 £1000
Consolidated
Balance a1 1 September 2021 {3.758] 36,671 40126 34,932
Income 262 &0 22611 22,932
E=pariditure {1,239) {2.834) (19,847) (23,920}
Transfers between funds erg) - {621) {242}
Actuarial gandloss) on definad benedit pension schame 3,830 - - 3,830
Balance at 31 August 2022 {526) 33,807 6,160 30,540
Charity cnly
Balance at 1 September 2021 - - 2523 2,523
Incone - . 9,966 2.96¢
Expenditure - - {1,611 {7611}
Transfers between funds - -
Balance a1 31 Augusi 2022 - - 4,878 4,878
The spedific purpases for which the funds are to be applied are as Tollows:
Current year
Balance Tranefers Balance
1 September batween M August
2022 Income Expenditure funds 2023
Consolidated by charitakde actvity £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Employabilily and skills 3467 2 706 {4,443) - 1,730
Education 1.2 13,267 {13.4a4) {BO8) Hb
Justica - 132 {132) - -
Young paople, lamilies and communilies 1273 4 B0 (4,780 {318) 1,058
Cther 133 248 {278) - 1067
Tuolal reswicted funds 6,168 21,243 (23,088) (1,017} 3309
Balance Transfers Balance
1 September between 3 August
2022 Income Expenditure funds 2023
Charity only by charitable aclivity £'000 £000 £000 £000 2000
Employabilily and akills 3487 2,706 14,443) - 1.730
Justice - 132 (132) - -
Young peple, lamihes and communlues 1273 4,797 14,695) {319) 1,056
Other 1358 242 (278} - 10T

Tolal reswicted funds 4678 T.883 9, M48) (219) 2893
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17. Restricted funds (continued)

Prior year
EBalance Translers Balance
1 Septembar betwean M Lugust
2021 Income Expenditure funds 2022
Conzoldated by charitable aclivity £ 000 £'000 £00D 00 £ 00
Emplayability and skills 1,357 5,080 {3.980) - 3467
Education 1,503 12,6456 12,236} 621) 1,201
Justice - 255 {255) - -
Woung people, famllles and communlties #14 3445 {3264 208 1,273
Other 25 176 &2) {208) 13
Tolal restricted furds. 4,026 2261 119,247} {621) 6,163
Prior year
Balance Transfers Balance
1 September between 3 August
201 Income Expenditure funds 2022
Charity only by charitable activity £'00¢ £000 £opd £000 £000
Employabilily and skills 1,357 G080 {3.280) - 3467
Jushce - 255 {255) - -
Young pecple, families and communities 914 3445 {3.284) 208 1,273
Other 252 176 182} {202) 138
Total restricted funda. 2,583 &.960 {7,611} - 4,878
18. Unrestricted funds
Net
gainsilosses)
on investments
Balance Transfers and share of Balance
1 September between asgoaclate net 31 August
2022 Income Expendifure funds profit 023
£'0H £'000 £ E00D E00D £'000
Consclidated
Ravalyalion rasetve 2436 43] - 2,393
Deacignated fund 1064 - L] 272 - 1,307
General fund 12182 3.6H {32,802 76 455 12,215
Tataf 15682 31,6984 {32,564) 948 455 15815
Charity
Revaluation reseng 2438 43 - 2,203
Dastgnated fund 1064 - R L] ave - 1,307
Genera fund 11834 31,8918 {32, 286) 47 30 11.923
Tataf 15424 31,919 {32,348 19 209 15,623

Ravalation reserva

This repx it the diff

Designaled fund

the ned ook value and valuabon of revalued property,

This epresants funds that the tnustees have allocaled 1o spacific projects. Thesa projacls ara:

» Use ol dala and analyics 10 improve owpact and dellver reform objecives; £60dk (2022 £604k) over lhe next 2 years

Reducing 1he organisalion’s enviranmental impact; £131k (2022:F 150k) over the next 2 years

Developing and capluring the soclal value defivered by the argarisation; £75k (2022: £nl] over the nexd 2 years

-
+ Growing the crganisafion 1o reach more beneficiaries and deliver grealer impact; £422k (2022 £300K) gver the nexd 2 years
-
-

Ensuring the organisalion’s supper serdces and siructires are il lor purpose; £75k (2022 £nil) over the nesd 1 vear

General fund

This represents funds which are not restricted or designated for specific purposes. General funds are expendable al the discrefion of the
frustees 1o further the charlable objects of the Catch2Z group
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18. Unrestricted funds [continued}

Prior year Net
Balance Transfers  gainsilosses) Balance
1 September between oh H August
by Income  Expenditure funds invesimernts 2022
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Consolldated
Revaliation resense 2479 (43) - 2,426
Lesignated fumd - - - 1.084 1,054
Genaral fund 9,242 37 058 (32 672) {812) {724 12,192
Total 11,722 37.058 (32,616) 242 724) 15,682
Charity
FRevaluation reserve 2479 43) - 2436
Pesignated fund - - - 1,054 . 1,054
General fuad g.902 37,220 (22 506) {1.054) {724) 11,934
Total 11,477 3r.220 (32,540} - {724) 15424
19. Analysis of net assets between funds
Restricted Restricted 31 August
pension  fixed asset  Restricted Unrestricied 2023
funds funds funds funds Tetal
Consolldated E000 E£QQ0 EQQ0 £000 £7000
Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are represented by:
Tangible fixed assets - 33672 - 5496 39,168
Intangible fixed assets - - - 202 202
Imvesiments - - - 11,119 11,118
Currenl agsetsilliabilibes} - - 3,200 {381} 2958
Lang term liabilibas - - - {551} {551}
Total ne! assets - 33672 3,309 15915 52,896
Charity Only
Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are represented by:
Tangible fired assets - - - 5496 5496
Intangible fixed assets - - - 202 202
Invesimenis - - - 10468 10,568
Cumant assetsfliabilmes) - - 2,803 {392) 2,501
Long term liahiliies - - - {561} {551}
Toval net assets - - 2893 15,623 18,516
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19. Analysls of net assets between funds [continued)

Restricted Restricted ¥ August
pension  fixed asset  Restricted Unrestricted 2022
funds funds funds funds Total
Consolidation £'000 £000 €000 £:000 £:000
Fund halances at 31 August 2022 ars reprasentad by:
Tangible fixed assets - 33.897 - 5.582 39,479
Intangible fixed assets - - - 237 237
Invesiments - - - 10,695 10,695
Cusrant assedsiliabilities) - - 6,162 {54) 6,115
Lang term lighilities - - - {F78} {778)
Provigions {526} - - . {526}
Total net assets {526 33,897 6,169 15,682 55,222
Charity Only
Fund balances at 31 August 2022 ars represented by:
Tangible fired assets - - - 5565 5,565
Intangible fixed assets - - - 237 237
Inveslments - - - 10,580 10,500
Curran asselsiliabiliies) - - 4,878 {1500} 4,688
Lang term liabiihes - - - {778} {778)
Tolal nat assals - - 4578 15,424 20302

20. Commitments under operating leases

Consolidation
At 3 August 2023 the graup had iutare minimum commitmenis wdes non-cancellable oparating leases as iollows.
31 August 31 August

2023 2022
£000 £7000
Land and buildings:
sxpiring in the first ysar a04 697
axpiring in the sacond to fifth year a1 704
expiring afler ive years - 288
1445 1,689

Charity only
AL 31 August 20273 the charity had Tulure minimum commitments under non-cancellable operaling leases as follows:
3 August 3 August

2023 2022
£000 £000
Land and buildings:
expiring in the first year a04 697
expiring in the second to fifth year 591 704
expiring afler five years - 286

1,495 1,689
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21, Pension and Similar Obligations

Employess of The Cateh22 Mulli Academies Trust (MAT) belang bo five principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England ard
Wales (TPS} for acadernic and related stafl; and Losal Govermmerd Perzion Scheme (LGPS') lor nor-teaching staff, corsisling of the Hampshire
County Council Pension Fund which iz managed by Hampshire County Courneil for Ashwood Academy, The Coppice Springs Acatlemy and The
Austen Acadsmy stafl, the Nonhamptonshire Pension Fund which 1is managed by Northamplonshire County Council for the Spires Acadsny staff,
the Devon County Council Pension Fund which iz managed by Devon County Council for the Burtorn Acaderny and Brunel Academy staff in
Torhay. ard e Norfolk County Counl Pengion Fund which is managed by Norfolk County Council Tor Fen Rivers Academy siaff,

Tha lalest acluarial valuation of the TPS related 10 the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGFS 1o the period ended 31 March 2022,

Teachers’ Pension Schems

The {MAT} participates in the Teachers’ Pengion Schemes {*the TPE™} for ils tsaching stafl. The pension chargs for the year includes contribubions
payable 1o the TRS of £738,2300{2022; £034,347} and at the year-end £122,852 {2022:£121.412) was accrued in respect of conlibutions te this
schems.

The TPS is an unfundad mulii-emplayar definad banefits pension schame govemead by The Taacherz' Pansions Regulzhons 2010 {as ameanded)
and The Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014 {a5 amended) Membars contribule on a "pay as you go” basis with contributions from
members and the employer being crediled 10 the Exchequer Retirament and other pension benefite are paid by public funds provided by
PaHiament,

The Govemment Actuary, using normal acluanal winciples, conducts a formal actuanial raview of the TPS in accordance wilh the Public Service
Pensions {Waluations and Employer Cost Cap} Diractions 2014 published by HM Treasury avery 4 years The aaim of the review is 1o specily thea
level of fulure contibutions, Acluarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumplions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many olher factors. The latest scluarial valuation of the TPS affecting contributions during the year was camied out a2 at 31 March 2020, The
vahation reporl was published by the Drepariment for Education on 26 Oetober 2023 The key elernants of Lhe valualion are:

+ employer contribution rates set al 28.68% of pensicnae pay {including a 0.08% employer adminisiration levy).

+ total acheme liabililies {pensions curmrenlly in paymend and the estimated cosl of fulure benetits) for service 1o the effective date of
£262,000 mallion, and notional assets {estmated future comribulions logether with the nobonal mvesiments held at the vahalion dale) of
£222,200 malll on ghang a nobional past service deflelt of £39, 500 milon

- the SCAPE (Superannuation Contribufions Adjustad for Past Exparience) rate, set by HMT, is used 1o determine the notional investmant
refum. The current SCAPE rate is based on OBR's forecast for long-term GDF growth. The curent 3CAPE rate is 1.7% above the rale
of GPI.

This valualion resullis due to be implemented from 1 April 2024

A copy of Ihe valuation report and supporting documeniation is available on the Teachers' Pensions website
Local Government Pansion Schames (LGP S5}

The LGPS' are funded delined benedt pension schemes, with the aszels held in separats trustes-adminisierad lunds. The lotal contnbution made
for thw year ended 21 August 2022 was £578K {2022- £434K), of which employers confributions lotalled £445k (2022; £370k) and employess’
conlributions talalled £123k {2022- £115k), The agreed conbibution rates for fulurs years is 22,9 par cenl for employers and is between & 5 and
12.5 par cent for smployess.

Fariament has agreed. al the reguest of Ihe Sacrelary of Stale for Educalion, ta & guaraniea 1hat, in the aveanl of acadeny closure, outetanding
Local Government Fansion Scheme abiliies would be met by the Department for Education The guarantee came into farce on 18 July 2013
andon 21 July 2022 1he Depariment for Education reaflirmed ils commitment 1o the guarantes. with a pariamentary nminule publishad on GOV, UK,
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21. Pension and Similar Obligations [continuad}

Local Government Penslon Schemes {continued)

Principal Actuarial Assumptions At 31 August At 31 August At 31 Auwgust At 31 August

2023 2023 2023 2023

Hampshire Norolk Northamplonshive Torbay

Rate of increase in salaness 4 00 3.65% 3 50% 3 85%

Rate of incraase for pensians in paymentinfabon 3 007 285% 3 00% 2 085%

Discount rate for schems liabilities 5.20% 5.20% 5.20% 5.30%

Irflation assumgrtion (CF1) 3000 2.85% 3.00% 2.85%

At 31 August At 31 August At 31 Apgust At 31 August

2022 2022 2022 2022

Hampshire Nodolk Northamplonshire Torbay

Rate of increase in szlanes 3700 3.75% 3850 2000

Rate of increase lor pensions in paymentinfation 2.70% 3.05% 3.05% 2.90%

Discount rate far scheme liabilitias 4 10% 4.25% 4 25% 4 20%

Irlation assumgtion {CP1) 2 70% 3.05% 305% 290%
Sensitivity Anafvsis

Approximate monelary incresse to bhe obligation as a resull of the following changes in assumplions al 31 Augusl 2022 are sel oul below:
At 3 August Al 31 August

2023 2022
£000 £000
Hampefire
0 1% increass in the salary increaze rate 2 4
0.1% increass i the pansion ncreasze rals L] 47
0.1% decrease in real discount rale g2 &1
Norfoik
0.1% increase i the salary ncreases rate - -
0 1% increass in the pension increase rale 15 10
0 1% decrease in real discount rale 15 11
Norifampios frire
0.1% increass in the salary ncréase rate
0.1% increass in the pansion increass rale 11 ]
0 1% decreases in real discount rale 10 a
Torbay
0.1% incraase m the salary incréass rate . 1
0 1% increass in the pengion increasa rale 20 472

0.1% decrease in real discount rale 29 43
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21. Penslon and Similar Obligations {continued)

Local Government Pansion Schemes (continued)

Tha current monality assunplions include sufficient allawance for luture improvemants in monality rates, The assumed lile expectalions on

rafirement age 65 are:

Redining loday
Males

Females

Retining i 20 years
Males

Females

Redinng today
Males,

Females

Redinng in 20 yaars
Males

Femalas

At 31 Avgust
2023

Hampshire

22.1 years
24 7 years

226 years
257 years

At 31 August
2022

Hamgpshire

22 9 years
254 years

24.7 years
27 1 years

At 31 August
2023

Norfolk

214 years
20,7 yoars

20.9 years
250 yoars

At 31 August
2022

Norfolk

21.7 yoars
24,1 yoars

22.9 years
26,0 yoars

The chariiable group's share of lhe assets and kabilities in he scheme and the axpected rale of ralurm

Ware]

Equiliss
Govermment Borrs
Property

Corporale Bonds
Cash

Olher

Total market value of assels

At 31 August  At31 Angust
2023 2023
Horthamptonshire Torbay
21.0 years 21.4 years
24 4 yaars 22.6 years
20.2 yaars 227 yaars
24 6 years 24 O years
At 31 August At 31 August
2022 2022
Northamptonshire Torbay
217 yaars 21.7 years
24 1 years 22 D years
22.8 years 22.0years
25 8 yaars 24,3 years

Fair value al Falr value at

31 Auvgusi 31 Augusi

2023 2022

£000 £000

2532 1,985

1,038 439

359 328

103 36

468 725

4,501 3513
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21. Panslon and Similar Obligations {(continuead)

Local Govarnment Pension Schemses {(continued)

Amounts recogrised in the statament of inancial actviliss:

Current sanace cost
Nel inlerest cost

Total operating charge

Changes in Ihe present valus of defined banefit obligations were as follows:

At 1 Septemiber

Transfer of exshng academy {notz 3}
Current samace cost

Inkerast cosl

Enmgployes contributions

Acluanal {gainflass

EBeanelils pad

At 31 August

Charwes in e far value of the charitabls group's share of schame assats:

At 1 Septamber
Transfer aut of exisling acadeny {nole 3)

Interast incoms

Conlibutions by members
Conlribulions by the employer
Actuanial (lossygan

Benelils paid

At 31 August

107

2023 2022
£000 £000
{560 {1,181)
(22) (58}
(582) {1,238}
2028 2022
£000 £000
4038 7,281
- (524)

560 1,181
178 118
133 115
{405} {4,058}
122) {72)
4,483 4039
2023 2022
£000 £000
3513 3623
- (262}

156 58
133 115
445 179
276 (228)
{22) {72)
4,501 3,513

Tha nal assete of £18k has nol heen recognised in accordance wilh FRS102 Faragraph 28,22, The asset valug is included in the acluanal gain

in the Statement of Financial Activilies,
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22. Related party transactions

ay

by

c}

)

e}

9

hjy

Duning Ihe yoar Catchf2 provided services and recharged costs 1o The Cateh22 Mulll Academies Trust Lid {MAT} amourling to £84 2k {2022:
£741k) The MAT provided services lo Catch22 amounting 1o £194k (2022: £533k}. At the halance shest date Calch22 owed £3k 10 the MAT
(2022: Caleh?2 was owed £413k from the MAT)

There were no ransactiors batween Caleh?? and Cateh22 Social Enlzrprise Solulions Lid {Solulions} during e vear. Al lhe balance sheet
date Catch22 was awed £108k {2022: £108k} by Solulions,

There were no transactions between Calch22 and Caleh2 2 Socsal Enterprise Lid {Auto22) dunng the year. The amounlihal was due to Catch22
from Auln2? al 31 August 2023 amounling to £646k (2022: £646k) was wniter off as irracovarable in priar years and therefore the balance
due at 31 August 2023 included within the CatchZ2 financial siatermenls was £rul {2022: £ nil).

Dunng the year Commurity Links Trust{CLT} delivered services for Calch22 amounling o £123k (2022 £nil} and CalchZ?2 prowded senaces
and recharged cost to CLT amounling to £120k {2022: £nil). Al the balancs sheal dale Catch22 owed £123k to CLT {2022: £nil).

During the year Catch22 provided services and recharged costs amounting to £178k {2022- £136k) to Community Links Trading and
Commurity Links Trading provided services amounting £1k {2022 £nil o Calch22, At the balance sheet dale Catch22 was owed £4741K {2022:
€306k} by Community Links Trading. A prowsion for £396k had bean mads in Cateh22's financial statements by the year andad 31 August
2022 and a further prowsion of £78k was made in tha yaar endad 31 August 2023, Therafore, the balance due at 31 August 2023 includad
within the Catch2Z financial statemenis is £nil (2022 £nil},

Dunng e yaar Cateh22 paid fral (2022: £5k) on bahalf of Ripplaz CIC. At the balance shast date Cateh22 was owsad £85k {2022 £103k) by
Ripplez. A prawsion for the full amount of this debt has been made in Calch?2's finanaal slatements for the year ended 31 August 2023 and
2022 and thersfore the halance due at 31 August 2023 induded within the Catch22 financial slatemenls is £nil (2022. &nd).

Catch?2 Social Enterprize Solubons Linted 1s & member of Pubhc Ssrvices Lab LLP (PSLY, which was incorporaled on 24 November 2016,
and il controls 43.48% of the vofing rights in that entity, There were no ransactions between PSL and the Catch22 group during the year and
here were no balances outslanding between lhese enfities al the balance shest dale {2022; £nil).

Cateh22 owns 20% (2022: 20%) of the voting rights in Jobz22 Limited. During the year Caleh22 provided services amounting lo £35k {2022:
EG4k) to Jobs22, Al lhe balance sheet data Jobs2Z owed £nil (2022 £2K) to CalchZz. Also during 1he year Johs2Z made an inlerest free [gan
o Calcha2 of £720k, the loan is repayable on demand and is inleresl lree At 1he balance sheel date E7Z0k (Enil} was owed 10 JobsZ2 by
Catch2z

Harvey Redgrave was appoinied a rustee of Calch22 on 27 February 2023, and is also a director and minority shareholdear of Crest Advisory
(UK} Limited. Prior 1o his appointmenl Cateh?2 agreed a contract with Cresl Adhasory 1o provde sernces to Calch2Z, the terms are on a
commencial, anmsdenglh basis. and wera not connacted 10 M Redgrave's appontmant as atrusiea During the year. and since Mr Redgrave's
appointmend as a ustes, Cresl Advisory have provided searvices to CatehZ2 amounling to £74k. Thars was no balance oulstanding betwesan
he arpanigalions at the balance shest date.

23. Events afer the reporting date

The Brunel and Burlon Academies lefl he Caleh2? Mulh Academies Trusl Lid (MAT} o 1 Seplamber 2023, e Fen Rivers Acadermy left on
1 Decamber 2023 and the Spires Acadanmy lefl on 1 Febrmary 2024 The remaining three academies ara dues 10 ba re-brokared 10 new trusts
hafore 31 August 2024, Faollowing the completion of Ihe re-brokearing 1ha Inusiees wall hegin preparalions (o wind-up tha MAT,
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